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2024 2025

2018 12 31 50,551,939.00 7,207,189,943 9.12 1,300
2019 12 31 36,019,078.00 5,135,239,950 11.61 1,655
2020 12 31 111,427,243.00 15,886,182,035 15.31 2,183
2021 12 31 163,175,060.00 23,263,868,304 17.89 2,551
2022 12 31 91,585,112.00 13,057,289,418 10.88 1,551
2023 12 31 113,858,626.00 16,232,824,309 16.20 2,310
2024 12 31 163,648,833.00 23,331,414,121 21.82 3,111
2024 131,504,575.90 18,748,607,386 18.50 2,638
142,381,191.00 20,299,286,401 19.98 2,849

136,842,251.05 19,509,599, 732 19.32 2,754

141,576,230.28 20,184,523,151 19.87 2,833

155,672,950.55 22,194,292,560 20.34 2,900

10 143,373,531.16 20,440,764,337 20.56 2,931

11 157,280,041.76 22,423,415,554 21.72 3,097

12 163,648,833.00 23,331,414,121 21.82 3,111

2025 168,483,316.32 24,020,666,408 22.59 3,221
161,319,092.35 22,999,262,996 21.15 3,015

150,622,629.20 21,474,268,245 19.37 2,762

155,281,316.48 22,138,457,291 19.59 2,793
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2020 12 31 2,825,977,115 14,429
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2022 12 31 881,245,877 9,814
2023 12 31 1,049,831,255 13,693
2024 12 31 1,091,449,326 17,449
2024 898,211,781 15,241
932,975,292 16,382

767,539,644 15,744

1,405,815,525 16,155

2,245,856,214 16,482

10 2,323,072,408 16,583

11 2,048,620,739 17,455

12 1,091,449,326 17,449

2025 1,141,424,394 17,989
1,052,154,853 16,785

945,921,099 15,322

938,582,702 15,422
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5,640,700 96,692 5,544,008
(5.640,700) (96,692) (5.544,008)
1,577,193 4,018,901 3,102,300
(1,577,193) (4,018,901) (3,102,300)
7,640,129 3,462,516 7,279,913
(7,640,129) (3,462,516) (7,279,913)
5,888,232 4,049,599 9,118,546
(5,888,232) (4,049,599) (9,118,546)
1,782,626 2,482,685 8,418,487
(1,782,626) (2,482,685) (8,418,487)
1,356,049 2,744,719 7,029,817
(1,356,049) (2,744,719) (7,029,817)
2,548,580 2,076,885 7,501,512
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205,219 11,868 193,351
(205,219) (11,868) (193,351)
10,956 79,280 125,027
(10,956) (79,280) (125,027)
231,597 160,771 195,853
(231,597) (160,771) (195, 853)
34,383 126,267 103,969
(34,383) (126,267) (103,969)
25,675 39,850 89,794
(25,675) (39, 850) (89,794)
62,662 75,787 76,669
(62,662) (75.,787) (76,669)
105,785 119,903 62,551
(105, 785) (119,903) (62,551)
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2024 12 31

TRP
2024 12 31
129,104,663 169,002,197 24,094,643
2,942,505 419,513
104,757 14,935
172,049,459 24,529,091
436,897 62,288
384,883 54,873
277,853 39,614
57,107 8,142
40,761 5,811
26,189 3,734
13,775 1,964
12,824 1,828
205,508 29,299
1,455,797 207,553
170,593,662 24,321,538
108,595,721 15,482,492
61,997,941 8,839,046
170,593,662 24,321,538
1,091,449,326
62,551 17,449
163,648,833
7,501,512 21.82 3,111

142 .57
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TRP

2024 12 31

112,442 16,031
112,442 16,031
952,397 135,783
410,146 58,475
126,108 17,979
55,921 7,973
43,848 6,251
27,490 3,919
22,308 3,180
88,259 12,583
1,726,477 246,144
(1,614,035) (230, 113)
10,909,136 1,555,316
(1,371,166) (195,487)
9,537,970 1,359,828
33,927,827 4,837,090
(506, 744) (72,246)
33,421,083 4,764,844
42,959,053 6,124,672
41,345,018 5,894,559

142.57
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TRP

2024 12 31

105,785
2,548,580

119,903
2,076,885

142.57
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(1,614,035) (230,113)

9,537,970 1,359,828
33,421,083 4,764,844
41,345,018 5,894,559
11,835,678 1,687,413
50,072,892 7,138,892
(13,112,998) (1,869,520)
(40,852,222) (5,824,301)

7,943,350 1,132,483
49,288,368 7,027,043
121,305,294 17,294,496
170,593,662 24,321,538




142.57

TRP

2024 12 31
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41,345,018 5,894,559
(42,687,000) (6,085,886)
37,594,000 5,359,777
(10,909,136) (1,555,316)
(33,927,827) (4,837,090)

507,327 72,330
3,856 550
(24,677) (3,518)
60,922 8,686
13,164 1,877

855 122
(6,324) (902)
9,635 1,374
(8,020,187) (1,143,438)
61,908,570 8,826,305
(54,039,677) (7,704,437)
7,868,893 1,121,868
(151,294) (21,570)
3,093,799 441,083
2,942,505 419,513
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2024 12 31 2024 12 31
13,693 16.20 2,310
(270) (0.21) (30)
4,026 5.83 831
3,756 5.62 801
17,449 21.82 3,111
27.43 34.69
1,091,449 163,649 23,331,438
1.77 1.15
(1.69) (1.07)

@
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TRP
2024 12 31
)
99.1
99.1
99.1
4,484,006 T R?We Price Funds fICAV - US Blue Chip 99 1 169,002,197
Equity Fund Class 1
129,104,663 169,002,197
169,002,197
129,104,663 99.1 169,002,197
0.9 1,591,465
100.0 170,593,662
(24,321,538,391 )
2024 12 31

(@)
73,184  Amazon.com, Inc. 9.5 16,263,654
64,924 Apple, Inc. 9.6 16,376,526
38,081 Microsoft Corp. 9.5 16,207,982
119,306 NVIDIA Corp. 9.6 16,335,325

142.57
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( )
( )
( ) ( )
( )
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 22,403,253 (143,419) (817) (817)
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 2,147 (335,328) 12 12
12 (817) (805)
( )
( )
( ) ( )
( )
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 29,041,628 30 (185,626) (224) (224)
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 335,328 30 (2,153) (12) (12)
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 8,946 30 (59 ) )
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 5,526,270 30 (35,216) 63 63
. 2025
Citi PB 1,771,792,546 30 (11,687,231) (376,102) (376,102)
. 2025
Citi PB 25,276,948 30 (166,623) (5,255) (5,255)
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 1,374,583 30 (215,703,948) (2,472) (2,472)
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 129 30 (19,535) S 5
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 6,567 30 (995,208) 214 214
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 143,830 30 (22,403,253) 807 807
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 75,494 30 (11,537,405) 1,840 1,840
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 773,854 30 (116,984,423) 27,025 27,025
Brown Brothers 2025
Harriman & Co. 2,269,318 30 (343,901,467) 73,850 73,850
. 2025
Citi PB 272,547 30 (42,544,709) 941 941

104,745  (384,066) (279,321)
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TRP
2024 12 31
TRP
2018 14
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2018 28
CIBC
UFJ
FASB ASC
946

GAAP
GAAP
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07

2024 12 31

2024 12 31

104,757 104,757
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104,757 104,757
2024 12 31
(384,883) (384,883)
(384,883) (384,883)
2024 12 31
FASB ASC 740
50
796,060 11 3,217
43
5,270,939 28 1,365,785
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2010

2024 12 31

2023

2024

2023

2024

2024

12

12

12

12

12
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31

31

31
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sicav
SICAV us
SICAV 2010 12 17
ucITS
CSSF
&P 400
)
)
) ) )
7,446,668 113,858,626 121,305,294
11,835,678 50,072,892 61,908,570
(13,112,998)  (40,852,222)  (53,965,220)
775,481 40,569,537 41,345,018
6,944,829 163,648,833 170,593,662
76,669 7,029,817 7,106,486
105,785 2,548,580 2,654,365
(119,903)  (2,076,885)  (2,196,788)
62,551 7,501,512 7,564,063
111.03 21.82
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10.00
10,000
2018 27
2024 12 31
10
10
0.001 10,000
2024 12 31
12 31 436,897
10
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ASC 815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2024 12 31 MNA
MNA
(€)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 103,816 (3,526) 100,290
Citi PB 941 (941)
104,757 (4,467) 100,290
2024 12 31 MNA
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MNA
()
3,526 (3,526)
381,357 (941) 380,416
384,883 (4,467) 380,416
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2024 12 31
104,757 384,883
2024 12 31
(1,362,568) (507,327)
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2024 12 31 410,146 2024 12 31 40,761
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2024 12 31
126,108 2024 12 31 26,189
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15,000
27,490 2024 12 31
2024 12 31
31 12,824
10
2024 12 31
277,853
11
FATCA/CRS
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1970
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0.015

2024 12 31
13,775

0.03

43,848 2024 12

0.65

952,397 2024 12 31

1,500
0.65
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13
10
12

2024 12 31
14
15

2025 16

2025 2025 16 180,460

285,430

2025 2025 16 17,143,753

8,768,767
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2024

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

Attt

ereestrnants in Undorlging Fund, at fair valos feoon of USD 129,104,663) 114
Ciah

Lirrgalicad agpeatiation on forward foreagn cunmindy Sothan g2 oMo

Tora! assats

Lishism-

Fayabls for Uit redoamed

Urwadlicod dopwadiation an forwird fansipn fuorrin ty @schange o0t sl
Arorosd detribotor's faes

Avirpd profiaion fisis

Accruspd masagamant Taes

Arorspd cotadan and wh-adminiaratoe s Kt

Asorupd tnubes fim

Ascrued agent company's fgs

Aconsed other eapenses

Tohal ity

Bet Aniet Attr i shile o U nlthol dir ush
Anabyils of Ket At

Faid incaptal LS50
Comedabivi et edrmings and destribabiond

Bt Asiets Attributsble to Unitholder =g

Boek Asaet Value par Unit
A Hodged Chans 1PV 1,090,449, 306 4 62,551 Units sutitanding) L]
FUSD Class LISD 163,648,833 + 1,500,517 Lnits aststin ding) (1)

The accompanying notes ane an integral pant of these finandal statermenis.
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169,002,197
2,542.505
104, 757
172,049,453

436,857
B, R
277,852
Sra07
40,761
5,183
1138
1rEns
Fir i ]
1,455 757

1P SRR

108,535,721
61,5975



TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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TR B R COTE
Bt int
Tortid Imvirstrmient Incomae

Expenter
Distributes’s faas
Managemaent fees
Custadiaer and sub-ddmin vtrito s S
Profmsonal fes
Agient eoenpany's fies
Trudea foe
Transfer et fien
Ry i plnsis
Totid Eupeirners

Pont |remaTraeng Lotted

Realized gaing/ lostes) ard change in unreaioed sggecistion|depreciation )
Fambigad ghins/foimes)
Invimbmeras Sales of Underbying Fund
Fowgs gn curmindy tranubi ki dnd forward foraign cumindy echinge otracts
Mot ridlized galo
Change in unrealized adored s on/fdenrec dtion)
Inwitenarns in Undadying Fusd
Fonagn comancy tramdations and forward forsgn tmrincy sschangs contracts
Mot phangs in wnvoalieind ape sl sion
Mt raaliagd and change in unnealized gaens and aporeoation

Bkt inoreste in net sttets etulting from operationt

st 11daar
11447

953,397
all,las
126,108
55,971
43848
FTAFD
e
5153
BT

—_— R

10,909,136

ST 166
9537900

3F,027.837
Jid

33,4821 088
A2 559053

uso a3 18

The accompanying notes ane an integral pant of these finandal statermenis.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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ncrease (Decreass) in Bt Assets frome

Dperation s:

Bt it [y

Bt vzl ined gaans

B changa in urvaakoed aggniciation

TR e i i Rt st rating o Ol iR

Capltad Tramsact oina:

Urits. iaued
WY Hisdgad Class {1065, 765 Linas)
USE Tans (2588580 Unitsh

Writs radianrniad
WY g Clao {119,907 Uity
USH s [FOT6ERS Unitsh
B i i e St s ing o ClVER ransactineg

Total Increase [m Net Ascets
Pt Adeati

Biginring of you
Erd of year

LasL {1614, 0%5)
2,530.570

AT L0EE
AL 345018

11835678
SO 0FREST

513,112 538)

(ARESEIEN
RN
45, 1ER, 368

121,305,354
L&D 19(k553, 662

The accompanying notes ane an integral pant of these finandal statermenis.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Cath ficwt from operating acthvitiet:

R ncrsdee I nart Sty niuSting o opar dtions

Adjustments to reconcile the net incneass in et astets resulting from operations to net cashused in

operating sethite
Purchase of rwastmants
Prodises froen sahit and maturity of svitmenis
Eoakzad gacns on imsndmants i securibes

Change in uniealted BOMRCiatinn on INEAmes
Chirge In unrpalized deprpciation on forward foreign turrenty e thange contrach

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:

st i i2eruad Mipart dormiieny’s Reds

Decraass in accrued oustodian and sub-admirstrator's fees

Brcreans in aacrudid ditei ol oes o
Irtrediar in adrued managisment fiss
B reada in accruad professonal fees
Dcrasas in accroed trustes fees
Itniaas In accrued obher awph i
Mt cath used in operating adtivities

Cith Mowd provided by Anmmcing sivities
Pragids froen Units iied

Fanmean 1500 Linis redeamad

Bort carth provided by finardirg activices

Bk deoreste i cath ard forelgn curmency

Canh and foraign currancy i beaginming of yar
Cash and forelgn oarency at end of year

sl a1 3a501%

fazEn000)
37,584,000
J1IS05.1325)
33 FFTERT)
407,33%

61,508,570
454,035,679 7)
7558 B33

!1!1 Zﬂ

3,083,718
s T 5480505

The accompanying notes ane an integral pant of these finandal statermenis.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
FINAMNCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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B Aviet Vil bginning of yaar

By irrastrmaant [iaay=
Mt realized and vnrealiced gains
N T e 0 Mt BasE raauting rom oparation s

Bk Asiad Wako o end of pair

Toa! ey

Flaki s/ Suppd ormiantal datac

Bt insets end of yise (0N

Rt of Dupaemiars 10 OTRED M Aty

Eitios oF ek [PradbmdetE | S B0 i b o diaity

Y Hadged Clas:
Fowr chee Year Emded
December 31, 3024

U0 Clais
For the Year Ended
Deoember 31, 3014

i 13693 UsD 16,20
1270 21
802¢ S22
3,756 567

L4} 17448 USD FLER

ITATN ,69%

o L8449 USD 163,645

1.77% 1.15%
{1.657% 41.071%

W Caludmad using dvesage LUaith cusstanding e tha year.

The accompanying notes ane an integral pant of these finandal staterents,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
December 31, 2024

{Expressed in United States Dollar}

Kuniber of ol Met
Cumency  Shares Security Description Anaets Falr Valus
INVESTRENT IN UNDERLYERG I LD [99.9%)
LABE MG (%
ECHNTY FLING |0, 1%}

LD 2484006 T Rt Frice Funds SECAV - U5 Blus Chip Equity Fund Clas | 99,14 1] 16002197
TCHTAL LU MBOERSG [Crost LiSD 17,104 RE1) TR0 97
TOTAL IMVESTMENT B4 LIRDERLYING FUNMD. 153,502 197
TOTAL IMVESTRVENT S [Coat LISD 13,104, 86 1) 1% [1.1x] IRAGa 07
CASH AMD (YTH ER ASSETS IN ENCESS OF LIABILITIES. (] 1,501,465
WET ASSETS 10K usD 170503662

" Thers aee Tour inves vt Rakd By the Iewadrnpnl Cerrguny for wiich the st progartionsl sepoiurs Ba the B soceeds & paeoet of ml
assels a5 o Decenber 31, 2034, Invesimaents ane peesenbed in Eable below,

= of Met
Curf e Sharei Securiny Degeription Entety Fair Valus
i) T Araonooy Ine 5% uin 1h26A45
uAD [ E ] Appie, L 0% utp 1R300
(1] 3z.nal Miretaf Coanp. D5 Usn 1630792
(1] 112,306 MWIEHA Carg, 25N use LB 335,315
Fured Lervedl Forvaard Foreign Currency Brchanpe Contracts
Nt Unreslizid
Bothonal  Settiement Notionad Urreallzed Ureealized Appreciation/
By Comsterpanty Arnaunt Dute  Sell Aot reciation [Deprsistion visti
IFY Browe Brothers Haddiman B Ce 12,403,053 OLDEI03E  USD (143419 LSO ~ush {EITIUAD [#17)
U Brown Brothes Mariman b O 4,147 OLOERNS  mY (435, X0 12 = 12
[EH 12 UsD [EITjusn [EDS)
IP¥ Hedige d Class Forward Forelpn Currescy Exchange Contracts
Met Wnrealied
Notkonal  Secrl Nzl Urcealiced  Uresalized  Appreciaion/
By Comsinnparty Amount Date  Sell d&mount  Appreciation  (Depreciation) [Repreciation]
IFY Erown Brother) Bardun & 2o, i 6l ALPIEE D (135,636 USD =Lish [FLLISD FEEET
IFY Brer Brothees Harrman & Co. 335,318 QOf30/I00% USD 12,153 - {13) {12]
MY Erown Brothers Marviman & Co, B 0 D 35 = 11 i
IFY Brown Brothers Haddisman & Ce 326,070 0130 1M USD (35,215 B3 - a3
1Y CiHPE LML 90506 010N USD  (ILEER2T) - 36101 (376,107
IFY  CIHPE sl outsalings o (i 3 3§ - 15355 [5.755)
LSH o Rrstiess Har ke R s, LTSS QL30T WY (215,700,043 - {2ATH [RATE)
WS Erown Brothers Harriman & Co. u9 ouanies wY (A9 535 ] = 5
USEr  Browry Brothers Harrnan f Co 6557 DRMIGE. mY (95, 205 714 = 714
LS Erowr Brothes Mo inan & Co. 143,830 OL30/inis Y (22803, 053 B = =y
U Browm Brothers Har b & Co AR DU wY LSO LEan E LELD
WSE  Browr Brothaers Harrinan & Co. TS DL00Es Y [LISSEAAY nms - 05
UiD  Erown Brothers Mariman & Co L280.018  OL000TE WY [MAE0LET) TRESD = TEESD
Ui Citpe AT QUMM WY (LS TR au = 241
USD 108 TASUSD  (3Z4.065)USD [2TAITL)
Curmency begend
Y lipanese Yen
Uk Undtesd States Dokar

The accompanying notes ane an integral pant of these finandal statermenis.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

ORGAMNIZATION

TRP LS Core Growth Equity Fund [the “Fund”) i 8 deries trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended urit fruss
established by a supplernental trust deed dated May 14, 2008 ithe “Supplemental Trust Deed”), under the lavws of the
Cayrran mlands Nikko AM OFfshare Furds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the "Master Trust
Do ”), wnder the laws of the Cayman islands and is Hoersed with the Cayman slands Monetary Authority pursuant to
section 4[1da) of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision). The Fund commenced operations on June 28, 3018,

The Furd's sisets are managed on & day-to-day bass by Nikko AM Ghobal Cagman Limited [the “Marsger™L The Marsger
delegates ineesiment management duties to Nikko Asset Management Co,, Ltd, (the “nvestment Manager™], The
Irsestnent Manager may delegate responsibility for the management of the smestment and re-investmem of certain parts
of the Fund's imvestment portiolio to other imestment managers, The admirigtration of the Fund is delegsted o Brown
Srothers Hamiman & Co, {the “Custodiar”™ and “Sob-Administrator”), a Erited poarines ship organized wunder the laws of the
State of New York

The irvestment objectiive of the Fund is 1o achieve growth in the value of units over the long term by investing imo a fund,
which imests mainlyin a dhersified portfolio of stocks of large and medium sized "blue chip® companies in the Unfed S2ates,

Under the terms of the Supplementsl Toust Deed snd the Master Trust Deesd, CIBC Coribbesr Bark ard Toust Company
{Caymanj Limited (formerly FirstCaribbean niemational 3ank and Trust Company (Cayman Limited) (the “Trustee” and the
“Admirsstrator] is named as Trustee of the Fund,

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Mongan Stanley Seorities Co, Ltd to act as Agent Company fthe “Agent Company™}
&l to st & Distributor fike "Distributor ™) of Units in Japan,

SUPMMARY OF SISMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES

The Fund is an Imeestmens Campany th follows the aceounticg ard reporting guidanss in FASE Aceouring Standards
Codification 946.

Usir of Extimfes

The accosmparying financial s1atesments have been prepared in accordence with accounting principles generally sccepted in
the United States of America ("UL5, GAAR®], The praparation of financial statements in accordance with LS. GAAR requires
the: Fund’s management tomake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Bablities and
disclosures of confingent sssets and liabilities 2t the date of the financisl statements and the reported amounts of revenues
Brad Experses during the repoering pemed. Actuslresults, induding the ultimate smoeurt realized wpon the alis of faie veheed
fvestinents, could differ from those estamates and such differences may be sigrificant,

Bagit of Accounting
Security and contractual tramsactions are recorded on a t'aﬁqﬁ‘.nn‘lnr.‘l-datz basis, irterest income it recorded o an
effectree yvield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax Interest espense and other expenses are recorted on an sconal
basis, Realized gains and losses from seculily tranaaions are computed on the bass of the iverage cof of the seourities
solld or covered. Changes in the wvaluation of imestments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
apgreciation or depreciation,

Vahnation af fmvesimmemls

it ments i ather imvestment companies [“hedge funds”) ane vahued on the basis of the Net As set Value "NV per share
as reporied by the admiristrators of those entities at the measuremem date based upon polides and procedures adopted
by the Fund, In cases where the Fund could in the rormal course of business redesm its underhing irsestment, such
immstment s are generally walued 21 the net aset valuations provided by the administrators of those entities.

In carses websere the Furd is unable 1o redesm it underying imeestrrent, such investments in portfolio funds are alss valued
&t the pet asset valuations provides by the administrators of these entities, provided that the underhing port{olia funds
have caloulated their net asset valuatiors in accordance with accounting measurement guidance which i applicable to
mvestment companies & g, investments within such undedyling investment companies hive been fair valued in accordance
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

SURARMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [eontinucd)

Vakwatron of fmvestemems [comhimued]
with applicable LS GAAP, unless the Imsestment Manager delermings that such a valuation would ot be the most
approgiate indicator of fair value, in whidh case the imestment would be fair v leed by the Imvestment Manager,

In accardance with the authoritative guidance on fair walue measurements and disdosures wnder L5 GAAP, the Fund
dischoses the ar value of 15 imaesirments in a hisrarchy (hat prioritizes the inputs 1o valuation techrigues wied to messure
1he {awr value. The kierarchy giees the highest griodity o vshuations based upon unadjusted quoted prised in acive markets
for identical assaets or labiliies {Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priceity o valuations based wpon urobservable inputs
that are significant 1o the valuation [Level 3 measuremants), The guidance establishes three levels of the fair vabue hlerarchy
s follaas:

v Liwed 1 = inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identicalimaesiments that the Fund has
the abslity to acomss at Ve measurement date

= Level 3= Inputs other than quoted prices that are significart and obsanable for the asset or Babillty sither directly
or indirectly, induding inpats in markets that are not consiciered to be active,

o Lewed 3 - inpufts that are significant and unobdinaabla.

Impiits ane wsed in applying the vamous valustion techpiues and beoadly refer to the assumptions that market participants
wie to make vahuation degisions, ncluding atsumptions about sk inputs may include price information, specific and broad
credit data, liquichty statistics, and other factors, A finandal instrurment’s lewel within the fair value hierarchy is based upon
the lowest leved of sny input that i signifscant to the fair value messuresnent. However, the determination of what
comtitules "observable” reguires significant judgment by the imestrment Manager. The Immesiment Manager considers
otmareabie data 1o be market data which b readily available, repularly distributed or updated, reliable ard verifiable, not
propeeetary, and provided by incependert sources that are actively imvolved in the relevant market, The categosization of a
fnarcisl irstrument within the hisrarchy i baded upon the pridng trensparency of theinstirument and doet not neoessarily
correspond to the mwestment Mansger's perceived risk of that instrument,

Imvestments whose values are based on the quated market prices in active markets, and therefore dassified within Leved 1,
would include actively traded equities, certain LS. government and sovereign obligations, and certain money market
spougities, The investment Manager would mot adjust the quoted price for such instrumenss, even in situations whene the
Fund held & large pasition and a sale could remorably impact the quated price

Irwpstonents that trade in markets that are not considened tobe acthe, but are valued based on guoted market prices, dealer
qutaeans or alernatbee pricng sources supporied by observable inputs are dlissified within Lewel 2, These inchede
mvestmentgrace debd securities, short-term investments and forward forelgn currency exchange contracts. As Level 2
mestments incdlude poditions that are not traded in active markets andfor ane subject fo transfer festrictions, waluations
may b adgusted to reflect illiquidity and/or mon-transferability, which are generally based on aailable markst information.
Irwestinents dassified within Level 3 heve significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrecuently. Level 3
nstrumant s would include asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As obsenvable prices are not
available for those securithes, the Fund would use valuation technigues 1o derive the Tair value.

Thae irguts of methodology used for veluing securities are not pecessarly anindication of the risk asodisted with imesting
in thase seourities.

In accordan o with ASU 201507, the Furd's imesiment in other imaestment companies has not been categorized in the fair
walue higrarchy nor in a roll forsard of imeestment activity.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

SURARMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [eontinucd)

Valuatron af imeestements [conbinued]

The follvwang table presents the finmancial irstruments cantied on the Statement of Assels and Liabilitiees by caption and by
Iewrd weithin the valuation hierarchy &5 of Gecomber 31, 2024, Further clawifications of the finandal nstruments are
presented in the Porifolio of investmenis,

Bzuers at Falr Valus Fak Yakis a1
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Decermber 30, 2029
Farwacd Fanggn Currandy
Exthang i Contracts 50 - e 104,757 Ls0 - LS 104757
Toaal [T = L0 104, 757 [TET] = LS 108 T5T
LiabiEties ot Falr Value Fak Vakie 51
Level Level 2 Lyl 3 Decensbier 31, 3034
Forward Faregn Curmanty
Eathange Contracts (B - LSEr {14 EEE LSO - UE H] _ (384, 883)
Tozal Ll = LIS IEL S]] LIk = LSl (3R, HR 3

During the year ended December 31, 3024, there were no transfers in or out of Leval 1 The Fund’s policy Is to determine
brveling and assess all transfers as 2t a year end date,

Faveign Currency Trantlation
Assets and liabilities held in currencies ather than Urited States Dollar {"US0™ o the “Functiznal Cumrercy™) are trapsiated
1o the Functional Currency at the rate of excharge prevailing 21 the finamcial statement date. ncome and expinses are
trarslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date on which the income or expense is inourred, Realized and unrealized
gains and lowes arising on foreign ourmency ramactions are inchuded in the Statement of Operaticns in the peniod in which
thisy aetur.

The Fund does not lsplate that porticn of the results of operations resulting from changes in forelgn exchange rates on
mmvestnents from the fluctuations anising froem changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations ane included
with the ne1 realiped and unrealized gam or loss from imvestments,

Income Taxes

Unider the ourmsnt Bws of the Cayman 1siands, theee are na income, withholding, capital gains o other taxes payabie by the
Fund In ortain jurisdictions other than the Ciyman dends, foreign taes mey be withhdd at source on dividends and
bt e evied by the Furd, Capital ghirs disived by the fund in sush jurisdiction gaoeilly will be eempt o lersign
mcome or withholding taxes 3t spurce, The Fund intends 1o conduct s affairs such that it will not be subpect toncome tax
n any jurssciction. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial staterents, Unitholders may be
tamed an thisr proportionate dhare of the Fund®s tax basis income bated on ther indbidual drcumstances.

The Fung follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and dsclosure of uncertainty in tax positiors [Fanancial
Mecounting Standards Board {"FASBE") - Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires the Mamager to determine
whether 3 tax position of the fund i more likely than rot fo be sustained upon examination by the applicable faing
authority, induding resohstion of any rdated appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical maeris of the position.
Fof tax positions mesting the mone ely than nat threshold, the tas benefit recogrizedin the financial statermend s is redused
by the largest bernefit that has & greater thin filty percent likdibood of besng realiced upon vlimate settlement with the
relevant taxing authoity. The Manager has detenmined 1hat there is minkmal or no effect on the finandal statements being
urdler this authoritative guidance.

Favward Fortign Currency Exchamge Confracls

Thee Fund severy erber inta forwerd foregn ourrency exchange contracts 1o hedge agairst forsign currency eachange rate risks
an ol or & portion o non-USD denormen sed irvestments of for efficient portiolio management pumpodes. When entefing
into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to recefve of deliver a flaed guantity of fore gn currency
for an agresd-upon price on an agreed fulure date, These conbracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net ecuity therein,
represerting unreslined appeecistion/ [deprecistion] on the comracts o mestunsd by the difference between the forwand
foreign cumrency exchange rated at the detes of entry into the comracts and the forwand rates at the reporting date, is
mcludied in the Statement of fddets and Lishilities. Realized and unrealiped gains and lotses are indluded in the Statement of
Operaiimns,
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

SURARMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [oontinued)

Fovwond Foveign Currenacy Exchemge Conbrools foominued)

Thaese instruments imvobe erarket risk, credit risk, or both kinds of reks, inexcess of the amount recogricesd n the Statement
of Assets ard Linbslities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterpariies to meet the terms of their contracts and
from mowement in curnency and securities values and inferest rates. In addition to the Class level hedging, the Fund had
realized gain of USD 3,217 on 2 forward foreign ourmency eachange conracts during the year with an average notional of
USD 196,060 and an average term fo maturity of 11 days. The Fund abso had reslized loss of USD 1,365,785 on 43 forward
foregn curfenty exchange contracts hebd ot the IPY Hedged Oass level during the year with an sverage notional of USD
5,270,939 and an average term to matunity of 18 days.

Cosh ond Foremgn Curremy
Canh ard forsign currency cormpn s all cumency held with Brosen Brodhers Harriman & Co., and overnight and other short
term placements with other firancial institutions,

INVESTRAENT I THE UNDERLYING TUND

That Fur shall primarily imeest in shares of US Blue Chip Equity furd [the "Underlying Fund®), a sub-fund of T. Rowe Price
Furidd SICAY, & societé dirvestissement b capital variable (*SCAVT) established under the laws of Lunerbowng. The SICAV
cpatlifies a3 an Lindertaking for Collecting Investment in Transferable Securities {"UOTS™) under Part 1 of the Luxembourg
Raw of Detesrber 17, 2010 o undentzkings for collective investment jthe "2010 Law"] and is negistered on the ofidal kst of
collective imvest ment undertakings mamntained by the Commmission de Sunveillance tu Secteur Finander (“C35F7)

That objective of the Underlying Fund is 1o increass the value of its shares, over the long term through growthin the value of
it mvestiments, by imeesting eraicky in 8 diversified portfofio of odks of large snd medium sited “tue chip” comparies in
the United States.

Specifically, the Underlying Fund imsests primarily in eguity and eguity related securities of companies that are either
incorporatesd in the Urited S1atet of Armerica o conduct mo? of their busimess there, that have a madet capitelization equal
1o or greater than the compecses in the Russell Mid-cap Index or SEP Mid-cap 400 index, and that havwe a leading market
position, sexsoned managemer and strong financial fundamentals, Types of securities may indude comyron stocks,
preferced slocks, warrants, Amercan Depository Receipts (TADRS"), Evropean Depositofy Receipts ("EDRs”] and Global
Depotitory Reoipts ["GDRs"L

in sewking to adhieer the Underdying Fund's objective the Underkdng Fund may also invest, on an ancillary besis, in other
eligible securitied 84 dederibed in i3 prospectus, this may indude ehghle secomties from ofther countdes, 1 more than a
lrited extent.

The Underlying Fund may use derbatives for hedging and efficient portfolio management,

The Uncertying Fund's financial statermerts are prepared under generally accepted accounting prindples in Lusembaurg and
the accounting podicies of the Underldng Furds ane substantially consistent with those of the Fund. Units of the Underying
Furd mray be redeemed on eadh Business Cay.

UnITS

The ret addets of the Fund are divided mto JPY Hedged Oads Unitt and USE Class Units. The Units are denderanated in
lspanese Yen and United States Collar. 1PY Class Units and USD Class Units are pnilsble to an ehigible irmaestor wha i@ any
person, corpantion of entity which i mot (i) 8 “US ievestors” (as defined below); (il & person of entity resicert o domaciled
in the Cayman |slands {exduding any obgect of a charitable trust or power or an exempled of non-resident Cayman idands
compary]; fii] unable fo subscribe for or hold Uinits without viclating applicable laws; and {iv) & custodian, rominge, or
trustee for any porson, corposation or ertity desoribed in (i} to (iii] abowe, or such other persons, comporations of entities as
determined from time 1o tire by the Manager, with the spproval of the Trusties

‘while all or substantially all of the assets of the Fund may be held in U5 Dollars, it 15 ntended for the fund to enter imo
hedging arrangements for the benefit of IPY Hedged Class Units, which are denominated in Japanese Yen, Those
arringements will be to hedge agains adverse movements of the curmmncy of denomination of the irvestrments in the Series
Trust redathve to Yen, Any profits, gains, lostes, ootts, income and expenditure awsadated with such hedging arrangesments
weill bt bawme by JPY Hedged Class Units,
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

URITS [eontinued)

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the notional exposure on the JPY Hedged Class forward comency eachange contracts
apgwcanmal ed the sverage ned assets for JPY Hedged Class being net Bog JFY and short USD, Open contracts a1 year end are
dischosed in the Partfolio of imvestments,

The Marager may determine o issue one of mone clsses of Units of the Fund without prior notice to o witten comsent of
the Unitholders.

Al of the pet assets attnbutable to JPY Hedged Class Units and USD Class Units ane beld by one Unitholder,

I Hedged Class LSO Clats Toral Fund

Balance at Decemier 31, 2023 [T14] TAA6 668 B0 113ESREN LSD  17L.305.0%
Subncripainns durig the yaar 11,835,678 50,072,892 61,908.570
Bidarnption, durng th yoar 13,112,958) RS 222} (A=t s ]
Il s i 1t AR Pang o opr Mtions 775,481 AG 569537 41, 245018
Bt Aviats it Docamiar 3], 2074 [E14 B A0 LSO 163E6.633 LAD 17L603.667
Bornbar of Uit in issae st Dasemiser 21, 1073 76,669 TOPAELT 1106486
Units isund during the yaar 105, 785 2,548 580 2,654365
Lirits rasdinirriid during thi yiar 1119.903) {ROTERES) 1B, TER)
Burnber of Units in ivse st Decembser 31, 2024 62,551 FSILE12 T SELUGT
B Adset Malua o Linit 38 Docamisgr 31, 034 [F4] 111.02 UsD ol ]

Submeriptions for Ui

USE Class Units were subscribed for by EBgible investors during the mnitial Offer Period at the initial purchase price of W50
10000 per Unit. JFY Hedged Class Units wene subsoribed for by Eigible mvestors duning the initial Offer Fericd at the initial
purdhaie price of IPY 10,000 per Urit. The initial Offer Period commenced on June 18, 2018 and ended on June 27, 2018 in
addition to the subsoription price, the applicant shall pay & sales charge ciloulated at upto 35 {exdudirg any tix appdicable |
of the purchase price, to the Distabutor. There werne no sales charges pakd during the year ended December 31, 2024,

During the initial Offer Period, the mirimum sbscription for US0 Qaws Units per subsoriber was 10 Units or mone, and in
muttiples of 1 Unit thereafter, During the Initial Offer Reriod, the minkmum iritial subscription for JPY Hedged Class Units per
subseriber was 1 Linit of more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter,

©n ard after the Initial Cosing Day, the minimum subscription for USE Class Urits per Unitholger is either 10 Units or mone,
arslin multiples of 0,001 Urks thereafter or USD 100, and in multiptes of US0 0,01 thereafter, On and after the irftial Oosing
Dy, the srinimum subscription for JPY Hedged Class Units per Unitholder is either 1 Unitor mare, and in rmultiples of 0,001
Units thereafter or IPY 10,000 and in multiples of 12Y 1 thereafter.

The Menager may waive of change the rrarsmum initial and sdgitional subsorption amounts set forth abowve in its sole
disernetion fram time to time.

Lt Redemptions

The Fund récognizes redamptions in scoordanoe with the suthoritative guidanse on datinguithing Rebilitses from eguity.
Relerrpiiorn, whether expressed &8 Urited States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Urits, are recognized &4 abilities when each of
the Japanese Yen angd Undted States Dollar Unit amounts reguested in the redemmption notios becomes flaed, which generally
may ooour either at the tieme of the recept of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the nature of the
request, A3 @ result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but besed upon year end net asseds ane reflected as
recdemptions payable af December 31, 303 There were USD 436,857 of redemption: payable a5 at December 30, 2034,
imeludied 8s Payable for Units redesrmed in the Statement of Assets and Lisbi Sties,

Repurchase of Limits
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unitholders on sach Aepurchase Day {means each Valuation Day, of sudh ather
day or days a5 the Marager may from tima to time determine in respect of the Series Trust],

Unitholders wishing to have Units repurchased must send a completed Repunchaze hotice fo the Distribautor so @ to be
recebved by the Distributor ne later than 3:00 par. (Tokyo tirme) on the relevant Repurchase Day, The Distributor will send
the cormpleted Repurchase Notices 1o the Sub-Administrator by ro later tham 6:00 pomu (Tokyo tiene) on the relevant
fepurchase: Day or by such other time a5 the Sub-Administrator may in any particular cose determing,
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

URITS [eontinued)

Repurchate of Linils (continued)

if the relevant Repurchase Notice is not recerved by the Sub-Ademinirator by 1he relevant time, the Regurdhase Notioe will
b hedd cved urdil the pext Appurchase Day and Linits will then be redeermed o the relevant repurchase price applicable on
that Repurchase Bay. In the event either the day after the relevant Gealing Day or the day falling two days after the relevant
Dealing (ay is a day on which banks or stock axchanges in Japan are not cpen for noomal business, any Aepurchase Notice
reciivind o such Dealing Day, shal not be aeceptied snd insterd, will be aceepbed an the next Dealing Day.

A Repurchase Notice, once glven, b irrevocable,

Compulony Redemption
in the event that the Trnstee or the Manager shall defermine that any Urits of any class of a fund ane being beld by or for
the benefit of a person whais not an Ekgdle irmeestor for sush Fund of that such holding would cause the Trust o the Fund
1 b recuir et to register, be subject totax of vislate the lws of any juriscsction, or if the Trustes of the Manager has reason
to coubt the legitimacy of the source of monies vsed to fund the subscription or purchaze of sech Units, or for whirtewver
reason {which may not be disclosed by the Trustes or the Manager 1o Unitholders) that the Trustes or the Manager considars
EpgioyHinte ot it s sbsolute discretion having regand to the interests of the Urithokers of the relevant Class or the Uritholders
of the Fund &5 a whole, then the Mansger, sfer consuliation with the Trustee, may dires the halder thereof 1o sl {subjest
1o the provisions desoribed below in the section headed “Transfer of Units™) sudh Units within 10 days and provide io the
Trustes and the Mapager evidence of such sale, falling which the Manager may redeem such Units.

Termination of the Fund
Upon teri nation, the Marager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out of retaining adecuate provision
for all Eabillities properly payable and retairang provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall divtribaute the
proceeds of that realization fo the Unitholders proportionatily to thelr respectiee interests in the fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund

Dt ribarlions 1o Uit hodders

Thee Marager may, In its sole ghcretion, declare distributions and no guarantee is made that these will take place, Distribution
will be declared anmually on pach Distibution Aecord Date and caloulated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution Period
i & pawiod commiencing from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and induding
the Ristibution Record Date. The cistributions will be paid on the refevant Cistribution Payment Date, prosided that such
amcurt {if any) declared with respect to the rlevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Pesiod shall only
be paid out of the Fund's met income, realised and unrealived capital gairs and sny distributable funds of the Fund
attributable to suwch Class of Units a5 determined by the Manager.

The dedaration of distrbution to Unitholders reduces the Olass Lewd Net Asset Value per Linit without eny corresponding
chargi in the numbser of Class Leve Urits per Linitholder. This results in a Uritholder*s overall imvestment in the Fund being
recuced, In additon, any distributions during a Distribution Pericd whidh are in eocess of the Fund's net increass innet assets
resulting from operations results in 8 portaon of the distribution being return of capital,

The amount of distribugions, if any, will be detenmined by the Manager in s sole disoretion, and no representation or
guararten is made that a distribution will be madie in respect of each or any Distritwtion Period,

Copitalization

The Net Asset Value per Unit is calculated for eadh Dealing Day (each Valuation Bay, or such other day or days as the Manager
mray fromm tame to tieee deterrrine in respect of the Fund), by dividing the difference in value between the fund's assetsand
Eabilities [inchuding accrued fesi snd expernes of the Fund] by the rumber of Units outafanding.

Thae Trust Desd stipulates that the nuribier of Urats 1o be issuedin the Fund shell be unlimited as the Marager shall determine
ard shall be without par value,

DERNATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUNMENTS.
Accounting Standand Codification [ASC) 815-10-50 reguires disckesures about derivstive imifrurments and hedging sctiities.
It requires that the Fund disdose: a) how and why an entity uses derhvative instnaments, b) how derivative Bstrumaents and

related hedged items are accouned for and ¢) how derbative instruments and related hedged items affect am entily's
finarcial position, financial performance and cash flows.
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

DERMATIVE FINANCIAL BUSTRUNAENTS {continuid)

Tha Fupd trarsacts forward dervative nstruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument's primary risk
exposure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange comracts held by the Fund do not qualify as
hedges for acoounting purposes under the reguircments of ASC 815, The fair value of these derbativeinst rume nts is included
in the Statement of Asets and Liabilities with changes in fair walue reflected as realized gairs/{losses] or net change in
urwealiced appredation/[depredation] on deratives within the Statement of Operations. [Note 2],

The Furd may amter info an Internateonal Seaps and Derivatiee Assodiation, inc Master Agreement (1504 Master
Agrenmment”) with i85 counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The 1508 Master Agresment s iypically
negotisted by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lsteral terms and conditions for all subseou et deivative
trarsactiond. The SOA Maiter Agreement allows for the netting of all amourts owed to o due from courterparty ichs
2 single net payment ¥ a credit event of default shouls ocour,

Thee Fund has dected fonod offset fair value recevables and payables for derhative comtracts on the face of the Statement
of Assets and Liabdlities,

At Decerriber 31, 2024 the Fund had erered into the following derivative asiets by courterparty net of amounts svailable
Tor offset under a Master Netting Agreement [“MNA"} and net of any collateral recedved by the Fund

Drertvitive Ateett Derheatives Worrcath Cath Het Anspunt of
Courterpaty Subject to 3 MKA  Avallable for Offoee Coll | Received Collateral Recelved  Dwsbvathes Assers®
Browr Beothars Harnman & Co. USD 103,815 LSO {3525 usD =- LD - Ush 100,250
CHiPB o] 131) - - -
Tokal usp 104757 usD 8,487 UsD - usp - usp L2590

At Becember 31, 7024 the Fund had entered imto the following derivative Babilities by counterparty net of amounts avallable
for pffset uncer 3 MNA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund

Boet Amnoant of
Dervative Labilitier  Derdvathet Fgn-gath Cath Derfvathos

\Cosint arpay Subject to 3 MKA  Available for Offoet Collateral Medged Collateral Medged Liabilities!
Erovam Brotkgrs Harsiman & Ca. S0 353 UED 13,526) LEn = L&D = LIS -
(Nl Pl ) wET [0 ] = - 0 A16
Total uso JEAEEI USD (4,867) WD - Uso - uso 350410
it drrelnant aguih Bui Nt BNt e vt e payanle Boen the St pacty i R v of defiet,
At Decerrber 31, 2024 the Ferd bad ertered i the follrwing derivatives:

Arzet Dbt Eﬂmm
D rheathves STATEMPAL SLamemenL
Boot Arcounted for 3 of Bt ard of Assets snd
He It rumeE s Ligbilities Location Fair Valae Labalities Location Fair Valus
Forward forsgn corandy Lnroalinid appridiatson Lirriab pasd depratiation
amsharipe eoracts on ferward fankgn o farwand foragn
Roumrancy Risk) CwTency guchange [FE= 4] 104,757 oarency aschangs [E5] 384,883

Ol 134 cantracts

The effect of derivative instrements on the Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004

Derhatives hot
Acpounted Logation of Fealired Charge inUnreakoed
for at Hedging Gain er [Loat) Gain or [Loii] Appreiation or [Deprecition) on
Irabuments on Dervathes on Devivathoes Derivathes
Forward loragn curancy Nt realiced loss on Torwand forsign
wshirge Sortries Eurrinty @nsh e CoeArat;
Fumeny Risk) change in unredlizid depeed ltion on fawacd
foraige currerncy exchargs contrac (5] 1I6RS6E) LD E0T.z

76/191



.

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

PAANAG ERVENT FEES

The Manager is ertitled to receiee out of the amets of the Fund & management fee of a total of up o 0. 28% per anrum
{QLO3% per annum in respect of the fee for the Manager and 0,254 per annwm Tor the portion of the Net Asset Value up o
usD asnmilion, 0.24% per anrum for the porticn of the Net Asset Value over USD 250 million up to USD 500 million and
01,228 per annum for the portion of the Net Awset Valoe ower USE 500 million in retpect of fee for the imaestment Manager}
of tha Met Asset Value acoued on, and calculated as at, each Vabuation Day and payable monthly in arrears, in addition, the
Manager is sla entitled o be reirrbursed oul of the sssets of the Fund for sy experies incurmed By 1t in the proper
performance of its powers snd duties & permitted under the Master Trust Deed.

Durng the year ended Decemnber 31, 2004, the Manager earned fees of USD 410,146, of which USD 40, 761 15 still autstanding
asof Decerrber 31, 2024,

The: Marager will pay the fees of the Investment Manager out of its feet The Imestment Manager waill be responsable for
paying the fees of any of it delegates or other parties appointed by the mvestment Manager to perform its function in
respect of the Fund, provided, hoessver, the irvestiment Manager reay charge & trenseclion fee on the subsoniptions and
recemptions of shares of the Underlying Fund,

CUSTODLAN AND SLR-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has @ custody and accountng agreement with Brown Brothers Hameman & Co. (the “Custodian” apgd ~Sub-
Admmiiirator”] for which the Cuslodian receives a fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total atets and tramiaction

wolurme.

The Custodian and Sub-Adminisirator B eriiled to recenne out of the assets of the Fund an aderinistration fee [incduding
trapsfier agent fee] onthe Net Asset Value acorued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day at the following anrual rate:
« LO7% up 1o fand incheding) USD 250 million;

- (LD6SE up to [and inchuding) USD 500 millian.

- (LOS5 over USD SO0 rmillion.

Such sdministration fee & payable mombly in arrears, and subject to the manimumn annual fee of USD 60,000, The Sub-
Adminiztrator is aho entitled to receive cut of the atsets of the Fund fiees for currency administration and execution serdces
at the rate of 0,055 per anrum of the Net Asset Value of the redevart Unit Class, subject to the minimum anral fee of LSO
50000, n addition, the Custodien and Sub-Administrator is abo entitled 1o recihve oustomary safckeeping fees and
trarsaction changes. All out-of-pocke! experdes of the Cuttodian snd Sulb-Admini strator shall alsa be borme by the Fund.
Duafin g the yiar ended December 31, 3024, the Custadian and Sub-Adeinistrator earmed feet of USD 126,108, of which LISD
26,184 s still outstanding as of December 31, 2024

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTHATORS FEES

Thae Trustes 15 entithed (o receive cul of the assets of the Fund 3 combined fee at the rate of QD155 per anrum of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculsted as at, each Valuation Day and peyable quartedy in arears, subject 10 a mirsmum
arnual fiee of USD 15,000, Curing the year ended December 31, 2024, the Trustes sarned foes of LSD 27,490, of which UsD
13,775 is still vt standing as of December 31, 2024,

AGENT COMPANTS FEES

Thae Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 003% per arnrum of the Net Asser
Wahae accrued on, and caloulted as at, eadh Valuation Day and payeble guarterlyin arrears. Guring the year enced Ceoember
31, 2024, the Agent earned fses of LS0 43,848, of whidh USD 12,824 & stilll out 2 anding 2% of December 31, 2004,
DISTRIBUTOR S FEES

Thae Distrsburtor s entitled to recebve out of the assets of the Fund a fies at the rate of U653 per arnum of the Net Asset Value

accrued on, and calcuated as at, each valuation Day and payable quarterly in anrears. During the year ended Decamber 31,
2024, the Distributars earned fees of LISD 952,397, of which USD 277,853 is stlll outstanding as of December 31, 2034,
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

OTHER FEES AND EXPERSES
Tha Aceranistratof recebas LSO 1,500 per ansnum for FATCA / CRS compliance sendoes,

The Underlying Fund is entitled to recefos ot of the assets of the Underlying Fund, a fee af the rate of 0.65% per armum of
the Met Asset Value of the Underying Fund.

FIMANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's activithes expose i 10 2 varlety of financlial risks: market sk [ncucing price risk, interest raite risk, and curmency
risk), orecHt risk and Bawidity ridk

Sfarkel Risk
All irreestments present a ritk of ks of capital. The imaestment Manager moderates this ritk throwgh a careful salection of
secuities and other firandal instrument &

The Furd's imeestrment management process is desoribed in Note 1. The primary det enminant of the fund's ablity to meet
s oljective of mid 1o long term capital appredation while earping income |s dependent on the performance of the
imeestment in the Underlying Furd. The Fund’s overall marke! positions ane moritored on a daily basis by the Fund's
Irwestment Manager.

Thee values of the Furd's irvesterents are affscted by 8 number of factors, inchuding but not Bmited to, changes in the wider
economy, finandial and currency marksts, fordign currency eachange rates and imterest rate movements. The Fund enters
into forwand contracts which 10 warying degrees represant a market risk in exoess of the amowed reflected on the Fund's
Statement of Assets and Lisbilities. The notional amount of the foreard conteact represents the extert of the fund's
partsipation in thede finandal nstrurments. Mareet risks associated with wuch forward comtrach srie due 1o the possible
mveaments in foredgn currency exchange rates underdying these instruments,

Oriher market and credit ricks inchude the posiahility that there may be an illiguid market for the conrdracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the undedying currencies or that the
counterparty to a farward cortract defaulis on its obligation to perform under the tenrs of the eondract. The Fund's exposure
1o laas due to courterpamy ron-performance on open Tutures, forwand foragn cunency exchange, swap and options
confracts is Emited to the unrealized appreciation inherent in such finandal instruments which are recognined in the
Statement of Assats and Liabiities.

Credil Risk

Credi risk represents the potertial kas that the Fund would incur if the counterparties, failed to perform purtuant to the
terms of their obligations to the fund For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts o the counterparty to specific
trapsactions and, therefore, bears the sk of delivery ' and from courerparties of spedfic positbons. The Fund's
marsgement ooes not consider that coedit risk related (o open derivative comracts will have material adverse effect on the
financial condition of the: fund

Although the Menager monitors the Custodisn and believes it 1o be am appeopriate arstodian, there is no guarantes that this
o any custodien that the fund may we from time 1 time, will nest become nsolvert, which could lesd to loswes for the
Furd

‘while both the L5, Bankrupicy Code and the Securithes imvestor Frotection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insolvency or Equidation of an insSitution, thene is ne certainty that, in the event of a fallure of an
institution that has cusiody of Fund assets, the Fund would mot incur lesses doe 1o s assets being uranailable for a period
of tiere, ultimat ey hess than full reeovery of its assets, or both. Becaise all of the Fund's cash i in custody with 2 single
imstitution, such losses could be sigrifiant and could materially wrpair the sbility of the Fund to schieae s irvestment
objective., The Fund is subject to orecit risk to the extent that this irstitution may be unabde to fulll its oldiga tiors to repay
AMOATS Dwed,

Liguidiily Rk
Irwesitart should be aware that the vabue of Linitd might fall 23 well 55 ite. Irsstment in the Fund imeahes 2 degres of risk,
there can be no assuranoe that the Fund's vvesiment objective will be achieved.

Tha Fund is rxposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has suffident resources to mest
the present and foresecable neecs of its business operaticns and, if pecessary, the liuidity to fund repurchases and achinwe
& market pasition appropristely reflecting 8 smaller capital base. This pasition is monitored continually by mansgement 1o
erviune that the Fund has the ability (o meet ity obligations.,
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TRP U5 CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Ligurdily Rk fconatimaed)

The Trustee, after consultation with the Manager, may suspend the ssuanoe and repurchase of units and paymers inrespes
of such transactions in any circumdances where the aloulstion of the Underlying Fund's Net Asset Value per unit is
suspended, The Trustee will inform unitholders of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or Efied,
Subseription applications and repurchass natices cannod be withdrawn during sudh sus pension and will be processed for the
next Cealing date. Al Urithalders af the Furd will be promptly notified invriting of any such suspension ard will be promptly
notifed upon termination of such suspension,

Risk
Thse Lirst price of LSO Class Unis bs determined in LSO, and the Unit prece of | 7Y Hedged Class Units bs deteemined in Japarese
ven while the fund & denominsted in LLS. dollars. The Fund, however, may ineest a portion, or all of, fis assets in other
cuifercies, of in irstruments dencerinated in non-Japanese Yen of non-US Dollar currendies, the prces of whidh will be
detenmined with reference fo such non-lapanese Yen or non US Dolar currencies, The value of the Fund's assets will fuctuate
with lapanese Yen exchange rates 2z well a5 the price changes of it imvestments in the various local markets and ourendes

The furd also may wilize optiors and fonward contracts to hedge against cumency Muctuations, but there an be no
assurance that such hedging transactions will be effective, and such technigues entall costs and additlonal risks,

The: Ireestment Manages monitors the Fund's cunency expotuns on & daily bass

Thse Marager andfor its delegates rmay borrow monies for the sccount of the Fund provided that it will not boeraw money
if, as & result of such borrowdng, the aggregate amount of outsianding borrowings effected on behalf of the Fund would,
immediately following such borrowing, exceed 10% of the valee of its net assets, save that this limit mey bo excended
temporarilly for 8 pefisd not exceeding 12 months in special situations induding, without limitation, & merges of the fund
with snother series trust, investment fund or ather type of collectiog investment scheme.

Thsere weere no borrowings during the yesr erded December 31, 2024,

COPMMIMMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

in the normal course of busingss, the Truster on behalf of the Fund may enter into comacis that contain a wasiety of
regieEr itEoes and warranties and which provice genersl indemnifications. The general ndermmifications spply not only to the
extent such representations and warranties areumrue but slsomay cover thind paries sudh as the Fund™ s Admiristrator, fuditor
of Insestment Manager for clains relted 1o the senvices performed for the Fund The Trustee's maximum exposune under any
such anrangements is unknown, 3s exposing only anises (o the extent future dakrs that hive not yet ocourned ane made agaanst
the Trustee. However, based on experence, the Trustee expects the ridk of koss 1o be remote.

SUBSECQUENT EVENTS

Management performed 2 subsequent evends review up So May 16, 2005 which is the date the financial statements were
svailable to be issued,

Effectiee Jaruary 1, 2005 through May 16, 2025, there were subsoriptions of L50 180,260 and there were redemptions of
USD 285 430 in redpect of 2 Hedged Cligs Uniti. There were didtibutions of nll in respect of 1PY Hedged Olids Uit

Effectree Jarwary 1, 2025 through May 16, 2025, there were subscriptiors of USD 17,143,753 and there were redemplions
of USD B, 768, 767 in respect of USD Class Units. There were distributeons of nil in respect of USD Class Upins,

There ane no other significant events to report as they relate to the Fund.
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2023 12 31

TRP
2023 12 31
114,087,527 120,057,234 17,116,560
3,093,799 441,083
236,660 33,741
123,387,693 17,591,383
985,000 140,431
511,354 72,904
216,931 30,928
56,252 8,020
50,866 7,252
27,597 3,935
20,099 2,866
9,459 1,349
8,968 1,279
195,873 27,926
2,082,399 296,888
121,305,294 17,294,496
100,652,371 14,350,009
20,652,923 2,944,487
121,305,294 17,294,496
1,049,831,255
76,669 13,693
113,858,626
7,029,817 16.20 2,310

142 .57
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TRP

2023 12 31

92,216 13,147
92,216 13,147
730,992 104,218
314,889 44,894
64,296 9,167
33,738 4,810
30,651 4,370
16,879 2,406
11,253 1,604
102,482 14,611
1,305,180 186,080
(1,212,964) (172,932)
(182,658) (26,042)
(805,929) (114,901)
(988,587) (140,943)
45,847,807 6,536,522
85,406 12,176
45,933,213 6,548,698
44,944,626 6,407,755
43,731,662 6,234,823

142.57
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62,662
1,356,049

75,787
2,744,719

142.57

TRP

2023 12 31
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(1,212,964) (172,932)
(988,587) (140,943)
45,933,213 6,548,698
43,731,662 6,234,823
5,185,814 739,342
19,470,809 2,775,953
(6,712,577) (957,012)
(38,634,415) (5.508,109)
(20,690, 369) (2,949,826)
23,041,293 3,284,997
98,264,001 14,009,499
121,305,294 17,294,496
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2023 12 31
TRP
2018 14
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2018 28
UFJ
FASB ASC
946

GAAP
GAAP
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07

2023 12 31

2023 12 31

236,660 236,660
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236,660 236,660
2023 12 31
(9,459) (9,459)
(9,459) (9,459)
2023 12 31
FASB ASC 740
50
267,892 5,313
43
4,423,832 28 802,516
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2022

2023

2022

2023

2023

12

12

12

12

12

2010

31

31

31

31

31
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SICAV
SICAV us
SICAV 2010 12 17
ucITS
CSSF
&P 400
)
)
c) > )
6,678,889 91,585,112 98,264,001
5,185,814 19,470,809 24,656,623
(6,712,577)  (38,634,415)  (45,346,992)
2,294,542 41,437,120 43,731,662
7,446,668 113,858,626 121,305,294
89,794 8,418,487 8,508,281
62,662 1,356,049 1,418,711
(75,787)  (2,744,719)  (2,820,506)
76,669 7,029,817 7,106,486
97.13 16.20
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10.00
10,000
2018 18 2018 27
2023 12 31
10
10
0.001 100 0.01
0.001 10,000
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 511,354
10
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ASC 815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2023 12 31 MNA
MNA
@
Citi PB 236,660 236,660
236,660 236,660
2023 12 31 MNA
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MNA
(O]
9,459 9,459
9,459 9,459
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2023 12 31
236,660 9,459
2023 12 31
(797,203) 85,406
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2023 12 31 314,889 2023 12 31 27,597
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2023 12 31
30,651 2023 12 31 50,866
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16,879 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
31 8,968
10
2023 12 31
216,931
11
FATCA/CRS
12
1970
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0.015

2023 12 31
20,099

0.03

33,738 2023 12

0.65

730,992 2023 12 31

1,500
0.65
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13
10
12
2023 12 31
14
15
2024 29
2024 2024 29 1,234,786
2,834,708
2024 2024 29 11,635,131
10,120,469
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2023

{Emuud in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

drrat:

Iryepstrnants i Underlying Fuond, of farvslue (oo of USD 114087527} b 10057 TR
Cadh 309378
Urraahied appretistion on farward loregn currency sohirge &6 mract F36,6E0
Tioend asiats T tmamiesn
Leakdites:

Payable For invems erds puichased 585 000
Parpalsla P Linits redasm e 511354
Agcrined distributorsfees 64851
aeruad professonal Fees 56,252
sty und cumod sn Bnd tube-ad miniraor's bees 501,856
Ascryad manggem et logl AT.58T
Arcrumd tros es fees 20,05
Urraalijed depreciafion o Forw ard foreigr currency sxdh arge oo radts 0ASS
Arcrued sger company's fees [ )
Agerudd S1her dopimn - 195873
Totel kablires 082 399
Mt Arpens Aatrbitsble te Unithalder wED 121305 754
darmbyiis of INet Sd peta:

P i capial LED 100652371
Tl s fbl dainiogs bed diginbut e JhBSLE2Y
et Appetd At s ble 1o Unithol der S0 m
Bt Aiiet Valus par Urie

{9 Hedged Cans Y 1048801, 255 = PEGES Uns satanding) s L1683
(IS0 Cla LIS 113, BERET6 + 7,0 RE1T Units st mandeg) 755 1670

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thess financal stements.
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TRPUS CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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IRvEitmEn | om g
T
Teaml Irvamm anl irdoss

Expenasd:
Dustributor’ s faes
Woluign b L
Prod gimonal feei
Agent company's fees
Ol desd b adden nimraton's lees
Truates lowi
Tranger agert fees
Cthes svparaas
Totw! Eipenses

et Invmitei ot Ladiga

Rualuwd gainefiosses ] and changs in lyad apgreci [l precistio m
Aaslized geingfomes)
e g it b of Lot yieng Fundl
Foruign currency transest ions. and forward foreign curmency sechange conbracts
Nt raalrad losoes
Tharge inurceshiced apprecsticn)Tdeprecation)
v ten et 5 i 0 cherd peneg Fund
Fdaign curningy tramiationd snd 1ore aed honingn currenty anchangs contracts
Kot crangein unnealined sppreciation
Fog realired and change i wresheed fosses snd apprecistion

Met Incraars im nart 3psete renuking from cperstion:

LD 92316
92216

730,953
ETRE-=]
Gl T8
mrm
30,651
68T
1183
102 453
1. 505 180

{182,658}

{605, 929 )
[T

45,047,807

H5 405
45,933 713
[

usp T

The accampamying notes are an integral partof thess fnandal statements.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Irereni s (Deoranie) in Met S pets Trom:

‘Dparaticns;

et inestmant losses

et i wd s

et charge i unroaliced sppresisbon

Hef incraase innet asset s resdting from operations

CapRal Transschinne:

Urat s immied
W Hediged Ciain (62667 Links)
LD Demn [ 1, 56,049 Un 5]

bty s ed
P Hadged Class (75, 78T Units)
LD Qi [, 744,715 Link )
Bhen o asE | DT BESEES Sasuling from Laginal FaRsaston g

Tetal Inerass in Net Asdets
(Het Assetic

Bagonirg af year
Bl &f vl

S0 {L212964)
(968, 387)

45,933 313

A9, 70 85D

5185814
(LY ]

{6, T12577)
{38634 415)
{20,690, 363)

23,040,293

2. 264003
LD §IL 305 75

The accampamying notes are an integral partof thess finsndal statements.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

ORGAMIZATION

TAF LS Core Growth Equity Fund (the “Fund®) is a seres trust of the Nidoo AR Offshore Funds, an opsn-ended unit rust
esablished by » supplemantal rust deed dabed May 14, 2018 [the “Supplemnental Trust Deed”), under the laws of the
Coyrman Idands. Wideo AM Difshore Fund s was established by a master orust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Dead”), under the laws of the Cayman Idands and is liomnsed with the Cayman llands Monetary Authorng pursuant
b section &1 ){ah of the Mutuasl Funds Lawr [200% Bevision]. The Fund commenced operations on lune 35, 3018

The Fund's asets are managed on a day-to-day basls by Nido AM Global Cayman Umited fthe “Manager®}, The Manager
delegates inntmant managament dutes o MNikks Asset Management Co., Ltd,, {the “vestrent Manager™l The
Irvesbment Manager marny delegate responsibility for the managerment of the imvesment and re-imeestmentof certain parts
of the Fund's imeesmnent portfoiio w other investreent managers. The aderanistration of tee Fund is delegated o Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian” and “Sub-Administrator”], alimited partnership organized under the laws of the
Srame of Mew York,

Tha investrrent ob fctive of B Fund is to achiowe growth in the value of unit over the long terrn By Irmeesting into a fund,
witich Irwests mainly in a diversifled portfoiio of stodks of lage and medium ded “plus chip® companies in the Lnited
Srales,

Umder tha terms of the Supglermnsental Trust Desd and the Master Trust Died, RestCaribbean International Bank and Trust
Cornpary [Cayman] Urnited [the “Trustes” and the “Adminigrator™} s named as Trustee of the Fund,

Tha Manager appoinied Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Ssanley Securides Co,, Lbd toact as Agent Company (the “Agent Company™)
mnd to sct Bs Distributer (e *Distributor™} of Units in Japan,

SUMMARY OF SCNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCES

The Fursd s an Invesatrmeent Company that follows the sccounting and reporting guidence in FASE Accounting Staridands
Codifipation 946,

Utpw of Eatirm ot

The sccormpamying fnandd statements hive bean praparad in accardance with scocunting principles gener aity scceptad in
the Uinisd Stanes of America [“LL5 GAAPY), The preparation of Enancoal smtementsin sccordancs with LS, GAAP raguires
the Fund's managament bo make estimates and assumptions that alffect the reported amounts of asets snd Esbilities and
dischanres of contingent assets and lisbsites st the date of the financid statements and the reported amounts of
renariens dnd expanes during the reporting pericd. Actual remdlts, induding tha ultimats amaunt realized upon the e of
[ il irpestranes, could differ from thoss sstirmaes and such difarsnces may be sigrificant

Seauity and conbractusl transactions are recorded on @ tradefcontract-date basis, Interest income is recordad on an
affmetive wield basis, net of oy applicabile wethhalding tx, Interest axpenie and cther sxpandes sraracorded on an acrul
basis Redized gains and losses from Seourity transacfions are camputed on the basisof the average cost of the sscurities
wld or covered, (hanges in the wauatfon of imestments are recorded in the Staterment of Operations &3 unrealized
appreciation of depredation,

Vrluoetion of investmaenits

IFeesitrmants in other imvestrent companies (“hedge fundsT) sre viluad on the besis of the Net At Value [TAYT) per
share & reported by e adminfstrators of those entifes ot the meassrement date based vpon policies and procedures
sdopted by the Furd. 10 cawes whers the Fund could in the normal course of business redesm its undarying investrment,
suich invegrmen ts are gener ifly valued &t the net asset valuationsprovided by the adminisrators of those entifies.

In caxses where the Fund is unalble to redesm it undertying investment, such invesments In portfclio funds are also valued
at the net aset valuations provided by the sdminisrators of thoss entities, prosided that the urderlying portfolio funds
hawe calodated their net assat valuations in sccordance with accounting measuremsnt guidances which is applicable 1o
veshmen T cormpanies 8. investments within such underiying investment companies hae bean fair valued in sccordance
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinuad)

Viduation of lovestmaen s [contin ued)
with applicable LS, GAAP, unlags the investment Manager datermines that such a valuatfon weald not be the moest
sopropeiate indicator of fair valus, inwhich case tha investment would e Far wabosd By the Irvestment Mansger,

In accordance with the authortative guldance on fair value mesmurernents and dsclosures under LLS. GAAR, the Fund
disclooes the fair value of fts imvestmants in a Werarchy that pricritines the inputs 1o waluatdon techrigues used to measire
the fadr value, The Herarchy gives the highest pricrity to valuationg based wpon unadiusted quoted pricesin e tve markets
for idensical amsats or llabilices {Level 1 measurement) and tha lowsst pricrty to valuations based upon unobsenable
fnputs that are significant to the waluation (Leve 3 messurementsh. The guidance establishes three levels of the falr value
hderarchy as [olloawss

Level 1 — Inpuns that reflect unadiusted quobed prices in active markers for identicl irvestmenits that the Fund
has the abillty 10 acoess o the memsurement date;

*  Level 3 = Inputs other than quoted prices that ore significant and cbservable for the asset or liabiity efther
directly or indiractly, induding inputsin markers that sre not oonsiderad 1o be Bt

Leveal & — Ipwits that are Sgnifcant and uncbservable,

Irputs are used in apphying the various valuation tachnigues and broadly rafer to the ssump hons tht marker participants
s Lo rakos vaduation dacidons, induding assumptions abour dsk nputs may include prize informatfon, acifc and broad
erachit data, fiquiding statsics, and other factors. A nancial instruments level within the (air value berarchny fs based upon
e loweest bevel of any input thar is sigréficant 1o the falr value meamrement. However, the determination of what
cormiutes “shasrvable” reguires sgrificant judigment by the Investment Manager. The imaeitment Mansger cormsicers
observable data to be market data whith is readily svalable, regularly disributed or updated, reifable and verifisble, not
propristacy, and provided by independent sources that are actvely invalved in the rdevant mirket. The categorization of a
fimarscial ingtrurrant within the hiererchy s hased upon the pricng ramsparency of the instrument and dees not necessarly
correipand o the evestiment Manager’s parceived qoof thist instrument.

Irvestrments whose valu es are based on the gucted market prices in active markets, and therefore chicslBed within Level 1,
wionld {mdude acdvely traded squdes, cortaln L5 goverrment and soversign chiigations, and certain money macker
securites The imvestmant Manager wiould not adjust ®e guoted price for such instrumenis, even in slwat ons where the
Fursd held & large postion and & sale could reasonably impact the quoted prica,

IFestmants that track in markers that are ot comsdenad 1o be sctive, but & walusd based on guoted ket prices,
dealer quotations of alternative pricing sources supported by chaenvable Imputs are dassified within Level 2, These include
Empestran tirada et securitieg, short-term imestments and Torward (oceign currendy axchangs contracts As Leval 2
st ts inglude posithons that ane not traded in actve markcets andlor are subiecr @ ransler restrictions, waluations
ey b ad juested v reflact iligui dity andf'or non-transhersbiliny, whith are generally based on svailabl e market information.

Irestrmants dasdfied within Level 3 have sgrificant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequentdy, Level 3
nstruerents would indude assetbadied seourities and collateralized morgage cbligations. As chservable prices are not
valable for these securitio, the Fund would uss vluatisn pedhnigues to derive the (air valua

Tha inputs or methodaogy used for valuing securiies are not necessarily mn indication of the risk amaodated with investing
i heoa pouries

Ir Becordance with ASU 2015407, the Fund's investmaent in other investrment companies hirs not Been ctegosiied in the
fair walue hisrarchy nor in a roll forward of investment activity,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF $GHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Viduation of lavestmaen s [contin ued]

Tha followsing table presents s finandad instrurmants carded on the Staternant of Aseets and Liskslitdes by caption and by
vl within the valustion erarchy as of Decernber 31, 2023 Further dasdfications of the finandal Ingrumens are
presented in the Portfollo of Imeestmants,

Beiiats 5t Fair Valus Fair Valus s
Levall Lervel2 Lewel Cwcom bar i, 200
Forward Forsgn Curency
Exthrpe Contrad i LD - =D I36,660 LD - [u] 13&61
Total TEY] - LD J36.660 LED - L&D FEZ
Lishiimies a1 Fair Value Fair Value o
Leswied 1 Lervell 2 Ll 3 D cambar 31, 223
Forwsrd Foregn Curency
E:Hmurm- IJiD - LE_D 15\,15_5# LED = LD 15‘ I55i
Total Wip = 1] {3459) LD N LD {Ha58)

Curing the year ended Cecember 31, 2023, there were no tramsfersin or out of Lewel 1 The Fund®s pdicy is & detenmine
IMEI“ and e Al ransfers as a1e year end date,

Foreign Currency Transotion

Azzets and liabilides had in asrendes other than United Sates Dollar {*USEE o the “Functiona Currency™] are trandated
o B Furctional Currancy &t the rate of achargs pravailing st e financid saterment data, Incorna and mpensss oe
trarslated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on whith the income or expense is incered. Realized and
wredized gains and losees adsing on forsgn currency ransactions are induded in the Statement of Operations in the
period inwhich thesy oocur.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resuling from changes in foreign exchange rates on
immshmen s from the Aucuations arising from dhanges in market prices of seaurities bald, Such fluctstiors sre incuded
with the net realized and unrealized gain or boss from investments.

Ineome Toxes

Linder the cument laws of the Cayman [dands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains or other taces payable by
the Fund, In certaln jurisd ctions cther than the Cayrman Bland s, forelgn taees may be withheld at source on dividends and
interest received by the Fund. Capital gaing derived by the Fund in such jursdictions generally will be exerrpt from foreign
income o withholding taces at source. The Fund inbends to conduct it affairs such that Towil not be aubject toincome e
in oy jurisdiction. As a resslt, no prosision for income tawes has been made in the financia statements. Unithaldears many
e taorad o their proporiionats shire of the Fund's tax basisincomes basad on their indvidus circumstances,

The Fud foilons e authonbative tu'dm-ce an socaunting for and disdosure of uncertanty in te posttions [Fnanda
Acoounting Standards Board [*FASE") - Accounting Stondards Codification 240), whidh reguires the Manager to determine
whether & tix position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sstsined upon examination by the applicable xing
authority, indudng resclution of any related appeals or itigation procasses, based on the tedhnical merits of the posidon
For tam positions mesting the more likely than nat threshold, the tax benafit recognized in the finandal statements is
reduced by the langest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being reafized upon wWiimate setioment
with the relevant taxing suthority. The Monager fhas daterrnined that there js minimsl o no affect on the fnancial
statermenits being under this asthortative gul dance.

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchan ge Controcts

The Furd may enter into forward forsign aumenoy exchange contracts to hedge against foreign cumency emchange rate
rigks on all or a portion of non-USD denominated invesments o for effident portfalio mansgerment purposes, When
entering into & forward foraign arrency exchange tontract, the Fund agrees to receive or defiver a fiwad quantity of
forelgn cumency for an sgreedwupon price on an agreed future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund’s nes
equity therain, represanting uncealized apprecistionfdepraciation] on the contracs & messred by the difference
betwaen the forward foraign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the fonward rates at the
reporting date, isinduded in the Statement of Assats and Labilities. Realized and unrealized gains and |osses are induded
in the Stavement of Operations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinusd)

Forwird Farelgn Curren oy Exchan ge Controcts [can Bai )

These Instrements rmclve marset risk, oredit risk, or both kinds of fisks, In exces of the amownt reccgrized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilitien Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
convtracts and from movernent in curmendy and securltes values and intenest rates. In addidon to the Gas level hedging,
ther Fund had realized gain of USE 5212 on 2 forward foreign asrency exchange contract during the year with an average
nodona of USD 267,552 and an seerage term 1o maturity of B days. The Fund olso had net realiped loss of LSD 802,516 on
43 forward foreign curency exchange conftracts held at the [P Hedged Coss level during the year with an average
natforal of L0 4,423,532 and an average term 1o maburity of 28 days,

Carsh and foreign currency comprises all curency held with Browm Brothers Harriman & Co,, and cwernightt and other short
bermn placam ants wikth other inarcia institutions.

IFVESTRMENT IN THE UNDERLYING FUND

Tha Fund shall primarily invest in shares of US Biue Chip Equity Fund [the “Undarhying Fund®], a sub-fund of T, Bowe Price
Fumds SICAV, a soddtd dirwestissement b capital varlable [“S00AV™) established under the lows of Liembourg. The SICAY
gualifies as an Undertadng for Collective invvestment in Transferable Securities ("UCITST] under Part 1 of the Lusemibourg
Loy of December 1T, 2010 on undertakdng 5 for colective Inmestrnent | the "2010 Law™) and is registersd on the offidal st of
ool ec thse investment undertsdngs mantained by the Cormission de Sunvelllance du Secteur Fnander |*55557).

Tha chjective of the Uinderiying Fund is 1o increase the value of its shares, over the long term twough growth in the value
of lts irvestrnents, by imesting mainly in a diversified porefollo of stocks of lange and medium szad “blus chip™ compandes
in the United States

Specifically, the Underying Fund imrests prirmarily in equity snd equityrelated securifes of companies that are efther
Incorporated in the United States of Amedca o conduct most of thair business there, that hunve 8 markel capitalisation
equal 1o of greater than the comparies in the Russell Mid-cap Index or 58P Wid-cap 400 Index, and that have a leading
market position, seasonsd management and srong fnancial fundamenialn Types of securities may include common
siocks, preferred stocks, wamants, American Depository Recelpts {“ADRs"), Evropean Depository Receipts (“E0Rs") and
Global Depositeny Receipts [TGDRS )

Ir seeking 1o achisve the Underlying Fund's cbjective the Undarlying Fund may also invest, on an anclilary basls, in other
aligible securities o5 describad In fts prospechus, this may Include effigible seourities from cther countries, o mone than a
Frripad exterl

Tha Underiyirg Furrd may wuse derivatives for hedging and e ficient portfolio rmanagernent,

The Underlyirg Furd's fnandal sistements sre prepared under generally acospited accounting principles in Luocemboung
and the acoounting poicies of the Underlying Funds are substantally consistent with those of the Fund Units of the
Uncarhying Fund may be radeermed e sach Bursiness Day.

UNITS

The rest astets of the Fuad are divided into IPY Hedged Ot Units and USD Oass Unies, The Linits are denaminated in
lapanase Yen and Uinited Soates Dodlar, JPY Oass Units and LED Class Unics are avalable 1o an diginle tnvesor who is anvy
perdon, corparation o entity which is not [] 8 “US nvestors” [ defined below); {iT) @ parson of entity resident or
daricilad fn the Coyrman tlands [exduding ey chject of a charftabls trust of pownsr oF an axempted of mron-resident
Cayrnan lilands companyd; i} unalile to subscribe for o hald U‘Jhm"ﬂ'mtﬁﬂaﬁrg spplicable laws; and iv) & custodan,
N, OF (rustee for ey person, corporation or entity described im (7] Do (i) abowve, or ach other pereons, corporations
o eriitias o detarmmined from time to time by the Manager, with the approwsl of the Trustes,

‘While all or absmntialy all of the assets of the Fund may be hald In LS. Dollars, it Ts intended for the Fund 1o enter into
hadging arrargemants for the bemalit of JPY Hedged Oass Units, which are dencminated in lapaness Yen, Thoge
arangements will be to hedge agalnet advarse movernants of the cummency of dencmrination of the immestments in the
Saries Trust relative to Yen Ary profits, gaine, |osses, oodts, income and ependiture assodated with such hedging
arrangemants will be borne by 7Y Hadged Class Unite
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

UNITS |sontio ad)

For the year ended Decerrber 31, 2023, the notional sapossre on the JFY Hedged Olass forward currency exchange
Conracts approaimated the s sge net assets for JPY Hedged Class being net long IPY and short LSD, Open contracts at
yaar and are disclosed in the Portlailic of Investrienta,

The Manager may detemrine to [sue one or morne classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or writhen consent of
e Uinithalders.

A of e netassets atwibutable 1o JPY Hedged Class Units and USD (s Units are held by one Unitholder,

JFY Hediged Chaaa. WD Dlmdd Tots Fund

atance ot Dacember 31, 2063 [T=1] BETHBEY USD  SLSA511F LMD 96364001
Suh v iprnn 3 i rg the yaw % IS B4 19, 470803 JABSEETT
Hedemptions during tha resr {6 T1LEP7) {363 ALE) {45, 346.582)
et increass innet asset s resdt ng from operations 2,294 542 AL AT 150 LR
et Aszerts ot Decombeer 31, 20TE Wil TAd6.668 LAD  1ILASBENE LD 11L30S M
Mumber of Lints i isrue ot Decemiber 31 2022 09, T84 LIRS b 0.508, )
Ukrsts instind dunieg the year BLELY LASE s Lea1a Ty
Uty redeem wd doring the yesr {75, Ty fLrasTLmy (20205060
Humbier of Ui m iz o Decemiber 31, 3023 To.6EH T.0xE1T 7. 106455
et Astat Vishe pr Linit o Dacember 31, 2020 [5.04] 9713 LD 160

Subseriptions for Units

L0 Cass Unitswere subscribad for by Bigible imsegors dusing the Inftal Offer Period at the inidel purdvase peics of LED
10000 per Urit. JPY Hedged Qe Urits wers subscribed for by Eligitde investors dusing the initid Offer Period at the inital
purchasa price of JFY 10,000 par Unit The Iridal Cffer Pericd commenced on June 18, 201 Band ended on June 27, 2018 In
addition 1o the whsoiption prices, the applicant shal pay & sdes chage coleulated at up to 3% (exduding ary e
applicainle] of tha purchase price, 12 the Distributor, Thees wiere no sales dharges paid during the year ended Decamber 31,
2023

Curing the initial Dffar Paricd, the msnimum subscription for LED Osss Units per subscriber was 10 Units or more, and in
mrnitiples of 1 Unit thermalter, During the retal Offer Perdcd, the minimurn inftial subscription for [PY Hedged Oass Units
per dubicriber was 1 Lindt & mons, and in muttiples of 1 Units Sharedfer,

O ol after the inidal Cosing Day, the minimem subscaiption for USD Oass LUnits per Unitholder [5 either 10 Urits or
mars, and in rmidtples of 0L001 Urdts tharaafter of LSD 100, and in multiples of LUSD 001 thersalter, On and alfter the
Iritial Jodng Dy, the minimem sbeription for JPY Hedged Class Units per Litholder 5 elther 1 Unit or more, and in
wrmaltiplers of 0000 Lt therealter or JFY 10,000 and in rultipbes of 1PY 1 thareadter,

The Manager may waive o change the minirmem initisl and sdditional subseription smeunts set forth sbowe i its sole
discretion from Sme 1o e

Linit Redemptons

The Fund recogries raderrptions in sccordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabiities from egquity.
Redermpitions, wisther expresond o United States Dollar, Japaness Yen or Uinits, are recognized as ifabities whan each of
the lapanede Yen and United States Dollar Unit smounts requested in the redempticn notioe becomes Bxed, which
ganeraly mEy octur ather & the tme of the recsipt of the notice, or on the let day of & fiscal yesr, depending on the
nature of the reguest. As a ret, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon yesr end net assts e
reflacted as redempticng payabl & 1 Decervher 31, 2023, There were LED 511,354 of redempitions payable as ot Decarber
31, 202 included a2 Payable for Unitsredenrmed in the Statement of Assets and Liasbilifes.

Kepurchose of Unity
LT may be repuenchased o1 the aption of Linithalders on sach Reporchese Doy {resans. ssdh Valustion Day, of such other
iy or darys &% the Manoger may from time to time da termines in respect of the Series Trust).

Uritholders wishing, to hove Units repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributor so a5 to be
reaceived by the Distributor o [ater than 300 pam, (Tokyo trme) on the relevant Repurchass Dy, The Cistribaton will send
the compleated Repurchase Motices bo the Sub-Admind grator by nd later than 6100 pum. (Tokyo Sme) on the relevant
Repurchass Day or by ssch other Hrme a8 the Sub-Adminisirator may in any particulsr case detarmine.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

UNITS |sontio ad)

Repurchoae of Units (continoed)
I the refevant Repurchass Notice is not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Repurcharss Motice will
b held ower untl the nexst Repur chase Cay and Units will then be redesmed at the rdevant repurdhase price applicable on
that Repurchase Cay, In the event aither the day after the relevent Dealing Doy or the doy faling two days after the
relevant Dealing Diay is & day on whidh barks or stodk exchanges In Japan are not open for nonmal business, ooy
Repurchase Notice received on such Dealing Day, shall not be accepred and instesd, wil be accepted on the next Dealing
Dy,

A Repurchase Notice, once given, [simevocable,

Compulsary Redemption

Im the svent that the Trustes of the Manager shall deterrine that any Units of any class of & Fund are being held by or for
the benefit of a person who Isnotan Bigitle imvestor for such Fund or that such holding would cause the Trust or the Fund
1o b regquired 1o register, be fubjact to T or viclate the laws of any jurisdction, o If the Trustes or the Manager has
reason to doubt the legitimacy of the scurce of monies used to fund the subscription or purcharse of such Units, or for
whatever reason fivbich may not be disclosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders) thar see Trustee o the
MNanager considers appropeiate at Its absciute diretion having regard 1o the interests of the Unitholders of the relevant
Qass o the Uinitholdars of the Fund 8s a whale, then the Mansger, after consultation with the Trustes, ray direct the
holder thereof (o g2l (ubject to the provisions descriped balow in the secton headed *Translfer of Units®) uch Unis
within 10 days and provide 1o the Trustes aod the Manager evidence of such sale, faling which the Manager may redesm
sch Liniits,

Temminotion of the fund
Ligan termemnation, the Manager will raslize all the astets of the Fund, and after paing out o fetsining adequats provison
for al liabilities properly payable and recairing provsion for the costs of the terminaton, the Trustes shall Eseribute the
provesds of that redimtion to the Linithalders propartionately to thair respactive interests in the Fund & of the date of
termination of t Fund.

Cirtributions te Linitholders

The Manager may, in its sole discetion, dedare distributions and no guarantes js rmade that these will ke place,
Cistribution will be daclared annually on each Distribution Record Date and calculated on aach Ex-Distribution Cate,
Distributicn Pariod is & period commendng from the cdendar day fellowing the preceding Distribution Record Date and
ending on and induding the Cistribution Record Date, The dutributions wil be paid on the relevent Dladbuton Pawrent
Date, provided that asch armount {if oy} dedared with refpedt to the relevant Qs of Units in respact of the appliicable
Cistribauticn Pariod shall only be pald cut of the Fend™s et incorms, redited and uneedlized capitel gains and Bny
distributabie funds of the Fund attributable to such Qassof Lnitsas determined by the Manager.

The dedaration of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Olass Level Nat Asset Value per Unit withaut any correiponding
change in the number of Oass Leved Units per Unitholder, This results in a Uinltholder's overall Investmant in the Fund
beirg reduced, in addition, amy distributions during & Digribution Pericd which sre in sices of the Fund’s net incrasss in
net assets resuling from operations results In a portion of the distribution being retum of capital.

The amount of distributions, if amy, will ba deterrined by the Manager in its sole disoretion, and o represantation or
guarantee is made that adistibution will be made in regpect of each or any Distribution Period,

Capitalization

The Met Asset Value per Unit is caculated for each Desling Day {=ach Valustiion Day, or suich ofher day or days a5 the
Manager may from drme to time deterrine in respect of the Fund), by dividing the difference in vadue between the Fund's
asets and liabilities nduding accrued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Linits to be isssed in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
detenmine and shall b without par value,

DERTVATIVE FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS
Acpounting Standard Codificat on (A0 B15:10-50 requires dsclomures about derivative instruments and hedging acivites
Itreguires that the Fund discloses a) heow and why an entity uses derivative instruments, b how derfvative instruments and

relmted hedged items are Bccounted for and <) how derivathe instruments and related hedged items alfect an entioy's
fimanclal posdtion, Anandal performance and cash flows,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

DERFVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS [ ontinaad)

Tha Fnd tramsects forward derivative instruments primarly Tor hedging purpotes with sach instrument’s primary risk
epopse baing foreign sxchange risk, The fonmard foreign ourrency exchangs contracts hld by the Fund do not gualify as
hedges for secounting purposes under the requisrements of ASC BLS, The fair value of these derivative instruments is
incligded in the Staternent of Assets amd Lisbilides with charges in fadr value reflected as reafized gaing{lossesh or net
change in unrealzed appcecationdepraciation) on derivativeswithin the Staternent of Operations [ote 2).

Tha Fund may snter into &n intermational Sweps od Derivative Assodation, Inc Master Agreement (71504 Mmter
Agrearnant’] with it5 counterparties in onder to mitgate counterparty rige The [S0A Master Agrewrnent is typically
ragatinted by the Fund and it counterpartied, containing the bidsteral terrs and conditions for all subsegquent derivative
rarsacions, The IS0 Master Agresrment ailiws for the nerting of all amoun s owed 19 oF dus rom coarvtarpany int a
sirgle net payment i & oredt svent o defauit should oecwr.

The Furd has dactad tonot ot e valos recenables and payables for desivative contracts on the Face of the Statemant
of Axsets and Labilities,

At Decomber 21, 3002 the Fund had entered into the following derivadive asssts by counterparty net of amounts avalable
for offest under & Master MNetting Agreermeant [“hiiC) and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Dierivaiien S pets Desrbowiives Mo caik Caih Mgt denemart o
Eounterparty Subject to a MM Avadable for Ofset Collateral Recsrved Collitersd Recebed Dervabhoe drrets”
Qi PB [Te] L35 66D LD = LG50 = LD = LA FE. ]
Tonal usp U = U0 BTET = Ush  zesen

At Decamber 11, 3023 the Fund had enteved into the fllowing derivative labllides by counterparty net of amounts
avaslable for cffsat under & MNA and net of oy colfatensl pledgad by tha Fund:

Mat Amount of
D ashouihoe Liabdtier Derbativer Honecaih Cath Derdvathes

Counterpadty Sulsjert 1o 8 MMS  Swvalsble far Ofser Collataral Pladged  Collsters] Medped Lishilinia’
BrownBrothers Marmen & G0, USD 9485 LIS - LED = S0 - LD 9459
Total uso 9459 USD - w5 ] - Wso 9453
Ut i e, acguils i Pt B cunt receirabl /s e iiie fom thi countarpart v in che even of defauk,
At Dagernbear 31, 2003 the Fund had entered into the following derivasives:

i gt Darbartivag Lighility Darkaties
Dgribrathar Statement Statament
Mot B ated for s iof s raty el of Brpets wnd
Hethging Ini trum ents Linkilkiai Lasasian Fakr Vahae Lishifie: Laestian Favir Valus
Forwand forsign oomency  Unneshned appe i abon el red depretistion
rchange pertract o loreaed farsign o Porwed laragn
{Curgncy Rik ) carngncy mnchan ge LD TIEED  ourrenty excherge LG 9.459

conkracts D_Cll'lr-ttl
The effmctof e mvatve indruenents on th Statermentof Operaons for the yesr énded Decermbiar 21, 2023
Darbatived Mot
Becourted Lecation of Epaliiad Chisrege bn Urraaked
or 33 Hadging G or {Loaa) Galn or {Loss) dppraciation or {Depredation) on
Ingtrum e o0 Derhvatha on Derhathed Derhewthes

et reafed boss on forward foregn
Forwand foreign urrency  owrrency sschango condra &
anchangs contracts tharge in unrealied appreciation on foreard
{Curnemey Ritk ] Nt g cuaranicy #uch el S0P R2LE i} {797.203) WD 65,806
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The Manager is entifed to receiwe out of the sesets of the Fund & management fee of a totd of wp to 0.28% per annum
{0L05% per anniumn [n respect of the fee Tor the Manager and 0, 25% per anrum for the portion of the Met Asset Value up o
L0 250 milion, 0. 28% per annum for the porfion of the Net Asset Value ower LISD 250 million up to LIS0 500 million and
0.22% par aroum for the portion of tha Met Aset Value over LED 500 millon in respect of Tee for the Investmeent
Manager) of the Net Amet Value acorved on, and calculated a5 at, sach Valuation Day and payable monthly Tn amears. in
aidition, the Manager is also endted to be reimburssd cut of the assecs of the Furd for any sxpenses incurred by it in the
proper perforrmance of its powers and duties aspermitted under the Master Trust Desd.

During the year ended Decervber 31, 1023, the Manager earned fees of LED 314,859, of which USD 7,247 {5 stll
outstanding as of Decernber 31, 2023,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investiment Manager cut of its fees. The Imvestment Manager will be responsible for
paning the fees of any of Fs delegotes or other parties appointed by the Imvestment Manager to perionm its functions in
raspact of the Fund; provided, howewr; the Invegtmant Mansger may charge a transaction fes on the substriptions and
rademptions of sharesof the Underhding Fund,

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custedy and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. [the “Oustodian™ and “Sub-
Adrrincarator”) for which the Custodian recsives b fee calculstad and paid monthly Based on total ssests and ransaction
wolume

Tha Qustedian and Sub-Aderdnistrator is entided to recsive out of the aseats of the Fund an admenisration fee [induding
ransfer mgent fee) on the Nat Asset Valus sccrued on, and calaulated o3 at, each Valuation Dy ot the following snmual
e

- T Reup b (e incheding] LISD 250 million;

- Nup o (and including] LISD 500 milliom;

- D5 cwer LISD 500 rrlion,

Such adminisration fes is payable monthly in arreary, and subject to the minimum anmesl fee of USD 60,000, The Sub-
Adriniprator i oaleo entided o recsive cut of the assmis of the Fund fees for currency admirsstration and sseution
seriions t the rate of 0055 per annum of the Net Aset Yaiue of the rdevant Unit Dass, subsjact to the minimum snrus
lee of USD 50,000, 1n additon, the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also enfded 1o receive custormany saleleeping lees
ad ransaction charges All cut-of podket expenses of the Custodien and Sub-Administrator shall dso be borne by the
Fumd, Curfng the year snded Decarnber 31, 2023, the Custodian e Sulb-Administrator sarnad fees of LED 30,651, of
wbich USD 540,866 15 sill outitanding asof Decernber 38, 2023,

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Trustes 5 entitfed i redeive out of the mmsets of the Fund a combined fes ot the rate of (.01 5% par arnurn of the Nat
Asger Valee socresd on, and colodated s at, each ¥alustion Dy and payalile gusrterly in arrears, subject 0 8 mirmum
anrusl fam of LED 15,000, During e yasr andad Decarmbar 38, 2023, the Trostes asmead faadof USD 16 ETD, of which LED
20,094 5wl cutstan ding a8 of Depemiber 31, 2023,

AGENT COMPANY S FEES

Tha Agent Corrparmy is entided to receve out of the maets of the Fund & fes 82 the rate of 0,03% per smum of the Net
Amat Value acoued on, and caloulated o= af, sach Yaluation Doy and payabl & guarterdy in aresrs. During the year ended
Decernber 31, 2023, the Agent earmed foes of USD 33, TAE, of which USD B 968 is still outstanding asof December 31, 2023,
DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributor Is entfded 1o recelve cut of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 055K per annum of the Met Asset
Value serusd on, and calodated a3 o1, exch Vauaton Doy and peyable quarterdy in arears, During the yesr ended

Decernber 31, 2003, the Distributors sarmed fees of UBD 730,992, of which USD 216,931 ia sl cutstanding a6 of Decsmber
34, 2023,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES
Thea Adrainistrator receives LSO 1, 500 per armurn for FATCA Jf CRS complisncs services

Tha Underlying Fund is entitied to recaive out of the assets of the Undertying Fund, & fes a1 she rate of 00655 per snnum of
the Nt Asset Vil of the Undarlying Fund,

FINANCIAL FSK MAN AGEMENT

The Furd's activities espose It oo variety of fnandal rigics: masiget rish [ind uding price risk, interest rate risk, and ourrency
risk}, credit risk ard liquidity sk,

Market ik
Al invegrrants present o risk of loss of capital, The Investirment Manager moderates Sisnise through a careful selecgion of
secir tes andd other §nancal Tnstruments,

The Fund”s Imeestment management process is described In Mote 1. The primary determinant of the Fund's abllity to meet
its ohiective of mid to long verm capitl appreciation while saming income s dependent on the performance of the
Emvestment in the Underlying Fund. The Fund's overall market postions are monitored on a dally bas's by the Fund's
Irmestmmant Manager.

The vedues of the Furd's imesrnents are alfected by 8 rumber of factors, induding but nog Emited o, changes in the wider
economy, finandal and currency markars, forsgn curmency exchange rate 5 and Interest rate movemants. The Fund enters
fnto forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the amount reflected on the Fund's
Staterment of Assets and Uabiities. The notonal amount of the forward contract represants the exent of the Fund's
partcipation in thes financial instruments. Markat risks sssociated with such forsard confracts arise due to the possible
miosements in Tordign cumrency exchang e rages undseriying thess insrumens,

Cither market and credit isksindude the possl bty that there may ba an llliguid market for the contracts, that the change
in the vals of the contract may not directy corrdate with changes in the value of the underiying cumendes or that the
tounterparty w8 forward contract defauts on s cbligation to parform under the terms of the contract, The Fund's
exponre to foss due to counterparty nonqperformance on open fubures, forwand foreign cemency exchange, swap and
options contracts is limdted to the unrealized appredation inherent in such financlal insruments which are recogrézed in
thee Staterresnt of Agsets and Uabilites

Cradie Rigk

Credit risk represents the potentia loss that the Fund would inowr if the counterparties, failed to perform pursuant 80 the
tarms of their cbligations 1o the Fund, For sichange-tradad contracts, the emchangs &0ts & the counlerparty o dpeaific
transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of spedfic positions. The Fund's
managarent doss not corsider that credt risk relabed te cpen derivative contracts will kine material sdverse sffect on the
finarcial conditicn of the Fund.

Mthough the Manager monitors the Custodian and befeves it to be an appropriste custodian, there is no guarantes that
this or ' custodion that the Fund may uss from tme B Bme, will not Becama insolvent, whith could lead o lesms for
e Fumd.

‘While both the LS Baniowp toy Code and the Securities inwestor Frotection Act of 1570 seek to protect customer property
in the svent of & falure, nsclvancy o gl dation of an institution, thers is no cartmnty that, in the event of & fallure of an
Institution that has custiody of Fund aspets, the Fund would not incur losses dse 1o its assets being urenailable for a period
of time, wtimatay less Sen il recovery of its stsats, or both, Becarse all of the Rnd's cash @ in oestody with & Single
institution, such losses coudd be sgnificant and could matedally impalr the ability of the Fund o achieve its irvestment
chjectva The Fund is subject to credit risk 1o the extant that this institution meay be unable to fulfill its obifgations to repday
armouns owned.

Liquiofty Risk
Imvestors should be mware that the value of Units might fall as well 25 rise. impeitrnent in the Fund imedlves a degree of risk,
there can be no asurance that the Fund's imvesment ohjective will be adaved.

The Furd is exposed o daily repurchase of its Unfts but manag ement. belteves that the Fund has sufficient resources to
maat the prisent and foreseesble needs of i busines cparations and, If necasary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and
achieve a market posiion appropristely reflecting a smaller copltal base, This podtion Is monlored condnually by
mHnag arent (o ensure that the Fund has the ability to meet its obligations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

FINANCEAL RISK MANAGEMENT [¢ontinued)

Ligualafity Riek {oontinwed)

Tha Trustee, alter consultadion with the Manager, may suspend the issusnce and repurchase of units and payments in
respect of mech ransactions in any drourmstances whare the calculation of the Underlying Fund's Met Assat Vialue per unit
5 mapended, The Trustes will inform unithal ders of aich 8 sepansion a5 soon Bs practicabrle after It Ts imposed or Bfted,
Swbgeription applichtions and repurchass notices camnot be withdrawn during such wuapersion and will be provessad for
the next Dealing dave, All Unitholders of she Fund will be promoily moti€ed inowritng of amy such suspendon and will be
prompthy notifiad upon termination of wich suspandon,

Corrency Rid

The Linik price of LES Qam Unitsis deterrnined in USD, and the Undt price of 18 Hedged Class Lints isdetermined in lapanese
Yar while the Fund is dencrninated in LS dollars The Fund, however, may imvest & portion, or o of, its assets in other
umenges, or in instruments denominated in non-lapanese Yen or noneLIS Dollar oemendes, te prices of which will be
determnivued with refensnos to suth mon-lapanete Yin or non LS Doller curmencies, The walue of the Fund's assets will Tuctuste
with |apanese Yen echange rates s well as the price chang es of its invesmemn zin the variousioca markets and urnendes

The Fund also may wtlize cptions and forward coniracts to hedge against cuevency fluctuations, but there can be no
amrance that such hedging ransatfons wil be effective, and such technigues entall costs and addiional rigos

The inwesrrent Manager o iors the Furid § s ency exponura on 8 daly basis
BORACWINGS

The hlh'lq:rmdfc\r its delegates may borrow monies for the acoount of the Fund prosided that it will not bormow money
if, ata resdt of such bosrowing, the sggregate amaunt of cubtanding bormrowings elfected on behall of the Fund would,
Eremadionaly following such borrowing, excead 10% of the value of its net sesets, seve that this limitmey be exceadad
termpararily for a period not exceeding 12 months in secid stusations including, without limitstion, a merger of the Fund
with anather s es trust, imsestraent fund or other type of colled tve imestment scheme,

Therewera no bomrowings during the year ended Decernber 31, 3033,
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal oourse of business, the Trestes on behall of the Fund may ater into conbracts that contain & waristy of
represantations and warranties and which prowide general inderenifications. The gensral indaroi ficafons spply not only m
e extent such represeniations and wanrant es are un e but also may cover thind parties sudh as the Fund's Adminisirator,
Papcliter or inssestrrent Manager for dairrn related te the sendoes performed for the Fund, The Trustes"s rasirnum expomrs
under ary fuch ETANGSMANTE 5 UNknown, a5 exposure cnly arises Lo the extent future daims: that have not yet coourred ane
Friache s mnnl the Trostes, Howassr, bated on sxparisnds, 1h Trustes epacts the ritk of loss toba remate,

SIBSECQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events review U to May 6, 2004 which [s the date the financia statemants were
avalable tobe issued,

Effective lanuary 1, 2024 chrough May 3%, 2004, there were subsoiptions of LSO 1 334 7585 and there were redemptions
of LED 2,834,708 In respect of JPY Hedged Olass Units, There wera distributl ons of nil in respact of IPF Hedged Olass Units

Effecgve lanuary 1, 1024 through May 26, 2024, thare were subsoriptions of US011,635,131 and there were redemptions
of LBD10.1 20,459 in respact ol LGD Cliss Units There wers S atributions of nil in respect of USD Oess Urits,

Thare ara no other SEniSemt ssnts i rapartas thy ralats i the Fund,
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2025
162,673,942.82 23,192,424,028
812,545.70 115,844,640
161,861,397.12 23,076,579,387
7,924,953
60,859
19.59 2,793

15,422
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194,245,943,619
2,036,661,817
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2024 31
2024 2023
4,561,628 650,351 10,387,958 1,481,011
1,834,018 261,476 2,439,807 347,843
6,395,646 911,827 12,827,765 1,828,854
1,655,120 235,970 1,996,396 284,626
1,655,120 235,970 1,996,396 284,626
1,000,000 2024 31
2023 31
480,000 480,000 68,434 480,000 68,434
4,260,526 607,423 10,351,369 1,475,795
4,740,526 675,857 10,831,369 1,544,228
6,395,646 911,827 12,827,765 1,828,854
11
10 22
2024 16
129332

142.57
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2024 31
2024 2023
12,998,608 1,853,212 12,607,808 1,797,495
(12,015,683)  (1,713,076) (11,446,280)  (1,631,896)
982,925 140,136 1,161,528 165,599
(104,049) (14,834) (80,923) (11,537)
878,876 125,301 1,080,605 154,062
(219,719) (31,325) (205,315) (29,272)
659,157 93,976 875,290 124,790
659,157 93,976 875,290 124,790

11

142.57
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2024 31
¢ > C > ( c Dy > C )
480,000 68,434 9,476,079 1,351,005 9,956,079 1,419,438
875,290 124,790 875,290 124,790
480,000 68,434 10,351,369 1,475,795 10,831,369 1,544,228
659,157 93,976 659,157 93,976
(6,750,000)  (962,348) (6,750,000) (962,348)
480,000 68,434 4,260,526 607,423 4,740,526 675,857
11
142.57
2024 31
2024 2023
659,157 93,976 875,290 124,790
98,264 14,009 80,923 11,537
219,719 31,325 205,315 29,272
5,785 825
982,925 140,136 1,161,528 165,599
58,583 8,352 222,571 31,732
9,320 1,329 (193,526) (27,591)
(27,715) (3,951) (152,898) (21,799)
(1,179) (168)
1,021,934 145,697 1,037,675 147,941
(6,750,000) (962,348)
(6,750,000) (962,348)
(5.728,066) (816,650) 1,037,675 147,941
10,387,958 1,481,011 9,431,206 1,344,607
(98,264) (14,009) (80,923) (11,537)
4,561,628 650,351 10,387,958 1,481,011
11
142.57
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2024 31
309GT
IFRS IFRS
IFRIC 2024

31 IFRS 1ASB IFRIC

IFRS 1ASB IFRIC

2024 31 4,561,628
12
12

2024 31 2023 31
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2024 2023
12,773,008 12,596,117
225,510 11,691
12,998,608 12,607,808

2024 2023
44,961 42,288
44,961 42,288

2024 2023
98,264 80,923

5,785

104,049 80,923

2024 2023
19 (219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)

2024 31 2023
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2024 2023
878,876 1,080,605
2023 19
(219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)
25.0 19.0
2024 2023
1,710,268 1,822,476
52,370
547,206
71,380 70,125
1,834,018 2,439,807
2024 2023
214,067 158,831
230,168 194,982
991,166 1,072,268
219,719 570,315
1,655,120 1,996,396
2024
31
30
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700,040 2023 461,277 2024 31 10
64 2023 42 78
2023 51
10
2024 31 2024 31
2024 31 @ ®) ©
( ) ( ) ( )
1,086,979 84,395
4,907,366 409,093
2,308,193 439,668
705,026 56,062 52,370
26,078 1,948
107,407
9,141,049 991,166 52,370
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2023 31 2023 31
2023 31 a
@ O ©
¢ ¢ C
1,307,294 413,237
5,080,647 416,397
1,994,461 173,046
839,181 66,862
66,598 2,726
106,123
9,394,304 1,072,268
(a
®
(c
(
2024 31 79,609 2023 80,000
11
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MNIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
Note 2024 2033
usb Usp
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,561,628 10,387 958
Debtors T 1,834,018 2,439,807
Total Current Assets 6,395,646 12,827,765
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Creditors 8 1,655,120 1,996,396
Total Current Uabillties 1,655,120 1,996,396
Equity
Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company
Share capital (51 par valee, 1,000,000 shares
authorised, 480,000 shares issued and 480,000 480,000
outstanding at 31 March 2024 and 2023}
Retained earnings 4,260,526 10,351,365
Total Equity 4,740,526 10,831,369
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,395,646 12,827,765

The annexed nates from 1 ta 11 form an integral part of these financial statements,

These financial statements on pages 10to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
for issue and signed an its behalf by:

y —
D Cruise
Director
16 July 2024

Company registered number: 129332
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MNIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYNMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023

ush ush
Reverue 3 12,988,608 12,607,208
Administrative expenses [12.015,683) (11 446.280)
Operating profit 982 925 1,161,528
Cther expenses 5 {104,049) {B0,923)
Profit before income tax B78,B76 1,080,605
Income tax 6 {219,719) {205,315)
Profit after income tax 659,157 875,290
Cther Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 659,157 875,290

All the Company’s operations are classified as continuing.

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statemeants,
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MNIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Share Retained
hoA Capital Earnings Toml
usk usp UsD
Balance at 1 April 2022 480,000 9,476,079 9,956,079
Total compre hensive incame for ) 475,290 875,290
the year
Balance at 31 March 2023 480,000 10,351,369 10,831,369
Total compre bensive income for 659,157 659,157
the year
Divicdend paid - {&, 750,000} {6, 750,000)
Balance at 31 March 2024 480,000 4,260,526 4,740,526

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit after tax
Adjustments for
Met foreign exchange loss
Tax charge
Interest expense
Operational cash flows before movements in
working capital

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Dacrease in recenvables
Increasef (decrease] in payables
Met amounts paid to affiliate — group tax relief
Interest paid

MNet Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Financing Activities
Dividend paid to equity holders
Met Cash from Financing Activities

Met (decrease)/ increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year

Note

o
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2024 2023

USD UsD
659,157 875,290
98,264 80,923
219,719 205,315

5,785

982,925 1,161,528
58,583 222,571
9,320 {193,526
[27,715) {152,398
{1,173} =
1,021,934 1,037,675
{6,750,000} 3
{6,750,000) .
{5,728,066) 1,037,675
10,387,958 9,431,206
(88,264) {80,823
4,561,628 10,387,958

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 farm an Integral part of these finarcial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 1 = General Information

Nikke AM Global Caymar Limited [“the Company”) is incorporated and damiciled in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office is PO Bax 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Strest,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Company curing the year were the
provision of investment advice and investment management senvices to third parties and other group
members, These non-statutory financlal statements have been prepared to ensure continued
compliance by the Company with the requirements of Chapter 3 of the Overseas Companies
Repulations,

Mote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting policies adopted are set aut below.

Basis of preparation

The Campany's financial statements have bean prepared in accordance with UK-adopted intermational
accounting standards [UK-adopted IFRS) and IFRIC interpretations applicable to companies reparting
uncer IFRS. As at 31 March 2024, the Company had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had
been issued by the Irternational Accounting Standards Board {"1ASB"} and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee {"IFRIC"). The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to all perinds presented in these financial statements. IFRSs comprise accounting
stancards issued by the IASE and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the IFRIC
and its predecessor bocy,

The directors have adopted the going concern basis of preparation in preparing these financial
staterments for the fallowing reasons: the Company is profitable; the Company has a strang and bighly
liguic balance sheet including cash reserves of 34,561,628 as at 31 March 2024 which s adequate to
cover the relatively low-cost base [after excluging sub-advisory fees which are covered by revenues).
The cirectors have prepared profit forecasts which, together with the liquid reserves and low cost
base, incicate that the Company has sufficient reserves to meet their labilities for at least 12 months
from the date of preparing these financial statements,

Based on the abowve, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Compary has adequate
resouUTCces to continue its operations for at least 12 morths from the date of these financial statements,
Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these accounts,

MNew accounting standards adopted
The directors ¢o not consider that any new accourting standarcs had a material impact on the
Company in the current year.

Measurement convention
The financial statements have been preparec under the historical cost convention.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the directars to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts
reported for reverues and expenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates. The assumptions and estimates, which are continuously
reviewed, are based on past experience and ather factors, including expectations regarding likely
cevelopments in the future. At 21 March 2024 ard 2023 there were na material estimates or
assumptions.

Operating revenues

Operating revenues include investmant management, investment advisory ard performance fees,
Operating revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recenvable far
services provided in the normal course of business, ret of discounts, trail fees, VAT and other sales
related taxes,

Investment management and acvisory fees and associated charges are recognised over time when
the services concerned are rendered, Investment management and advisory fees are calculated as a
percentage of assets under maragement. Performance fees are recopnised at a point in time when
they crystallise in the period in which they become due and collectable.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses are accounted for when they become payable.

Current and deferred income tax

Tax an the profit ar loss for the year comprises current anc deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
statement of comprebensive income except to the extert that it relates to items recognised directly
in aguity, in which case it is recoprisad in equity.

Current tax is the expectec tax payable or receivable or the taxable incame or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

The Company may utilise current tax credits anising on losses in other Group entities against its tax
charges.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differerces between the carnying
amoumnts of assets and liabilities in the statement of firarcial posiion and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of
firancial position lability methad. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogrised for all taxable
temporary differences ard deferred tax assets are recognised to the extert that it i probable that
taxable profits will be available against which decuctible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Forcign currencies
The functional and presertational currency of the Company 15 US dollars [5).

Trarsactions in currencies other than US collars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing an
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
cdenominated in foreign currencies are retranslatac at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date,
Man-monetary assets anc liabilities carried at fair value that are denaminated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determired, Gains and losses
arising on retranslation are included In net profit or loss for the periog, except for exchange
diffarences arising an non-maonetary assets and labilities where the chanpes in falr value are
recopnised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in banks and in bard and shart-term depasits with an ariginal
maturity of three months or less and foreign currencies held by the Company. For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents corsist of cash and cash equivalents as cefined abave.

Cash dividend

The Company recogrises a liability to pay a dividerd when the distribution is authorised, and the
gistribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholcers. A corresponding amounrt is recognisea directly in equity.

Financial instruments
The vast majority of the Company’s financial instruments are cash, receivables and payables which are
measured at amartised cost.

The Company has evaluated potential credit losses on all financial assets that are measured at
amartised cost. Factors considered in determining whether a default is likely or possible include
whether a payment is overdue {and the length of that period), any known deterioration in the credit
guality of a client/ caunterparty or other issues that could adversely affect a client’s/ counterparty’s
credit cuality,

For firancial assets where there is no knawn issues affecting credit guality, expected credit losses are
calculated based on the losses that are expectec to be incurred over a rollieg twelve-month period.
Given the nature of the Company's financial assets (i.e. mosthy cash at bank], there is a very low credit
risk, The Company is also considering the use of morey market funds to increase diversification and
further reduce credit risk,

Far any financial assets where the contractual payment is more than 30 days past cue, the default

position is to assume an ircrease in credit risk. Howewver, defaul levels in the past have been
immaterial and there were no fee receivables denoted as past due as at 31 March 2024,
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts due for management, advisory and performance fees and
amounts due from customers and others. All accaunts receivable are repayable on demand ar within
one year. They are recorded in the balance sheet at cost, recuced by appropriate allowances far
estimated irrecaverable amaunts, and they are interest bearing.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable include amounts due for sub-advisory services and performance fees and amounts
due to wendors and athers. All accounts payable are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement enterad into. They are payable on demand or within one year and are
recorced on the balance sheet at cost. Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interast
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Mote 3 = Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All revenue relates to the provision of investment acvice and investment management senvices and
arises in the Cayman Islands.

2024 2023
usp usD
Imvestment management and advisory foes 12,773,098 12,596,117
Performance fees 225,510 11,691
Total 12,998,608 12,607 808
Note 4 = Auditor's Remuncration
2024 2023
ush UsD
Fees payable to Company's Auditor for the audit
of the company financial statemeants 44,561 42,288
Total 44,961 42,288
Mote 5 = Other Expenses
2024 2023
usp UsD
Met foreign exchange loss a8 264 20,923
Intersst Expenss 5,785 -
Total 104,049 80,923
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 6 = Taxation

Taxes on income for the year erced 21 March 2024 were as follows:

2024 2023
usp usp
Current Tax
UK carparation tax at 25 [2023: 19%) (219,718 {205,315)
Total Current Income Tax Expense (219,719) (205,315)
Total Income Tax Expense (219,719) {205,315)

A reconciliation between the amount of tax expense at the effective statutory rate and taxes on

incame as reflected in continuing operations for the years ended 31 March 2024 ard 2023 is presented
b bevar;

Tax Reconciliation

Profit before taxes 278376 1,080,605
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of carparation tax in

the UK: 25% (2023: 19%%) {219,719) {205,315)
Total Income Tax Expense {219,719} {205,315)
Effective tax rate for the year 25.0% 19.0%

The Compary uses current tax credit from other entities in the Mikko Group to offset the Company's
CUFFENT TAX BXPEASE,

The amount due ta affiliates in relation to group tax relief i included as a payable in the statement of
firanclal position, nate 8. The prior year Corporation tax receivable, nate 7, and Amount payable 1o
affiliate - proup tax relief, note &, were settled during the year.

Note 7 — Debtors

2024 2023

usp usp
Accounts receivable 1,710,262 1822476
Amounts receivable from affiliates 52,370 .
Corporation tax receivable - 547 206
Accrued income and prepaid expense 71,380 70,125
Taotal 1,834,018 2,439,807
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 8 = Creditors

2024 2023

usp usp
Accrued expenses and deferred income 214,067 158 831
Accounts payvable 230,168 194 982
Amounts payable to affiliates 991,166 1072268
Amounts payable to affiliates — group tax relicf 219,719 570,315
Total 1,655,120 1,996,396

MNote 9 = Financial Risk Factors

The Company's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents and receivable and payable
balances that arise from its daily operations. All cash apc cash equivalerts are carried at cost which
& consicersd to approximate to fair value cue to the shart term maturity of these financial
instruments, The main risks associated with the Company's financial assets and liabilities are set out
below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty’s failure to honour its oblipation
principally in relation to transactions where the Company provides goods or services aon deferred
terms and where it invests or deposits surplus cash. The directors do not believe that the Company is
materially exposed to credit risk as its sales debtors are maraged group funds ard therefore
management and peformance fees receivable are governed by its agreements with these funds. Ta
mitigate ary residual risk of these assets failing to be delivered, the directors ensure that the terms of
these agreaments in relation 1o payments of management and performance fess are adhered 1o by
mianitoring the Compary’s aged debtor analysis against the agreed service level agreaments.

The Company adopts the policy of dealing with customers of appropriate credit history. For other
firancial assets, the Campany adopts the policy of dealing with firancial institutions and other
courterparties with high credit ratings, There are no financial assets past due and/ or impaired as at
31 March 2024 ang 2023, Trade recejvables are due at least guarterly, and are normally settled within
30 days of their due date, There are no overdue trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

Further, with regard to bank cdeposits, the Companry only deposits morey with approved
counterparties on agreec terms.
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Mote 9 = Financial Risk Factors (continued)

Market risk

Market risk {or systemic risk] is defined as that risk whick 15 common to an entire class of assets ar
liabilities whereby their value can fluctuate simply because of economic changes or other events that
impact large partians of the market. The directars do not believe that the Company 15 expased to
material market risk as the assets the Company marages are held by and for the benefit of fund
kolders through separate legal entities.

Currency risk
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of assets and liabilities denominated in currencies

ather than the furctional currency of the Company will change in value due to movemants in foreign
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from cash balances and fees
receivable in various currencies.

The Company’s total exposure to currency risk arising from cash balances, payables and fees
receivable in other currencies is 700,040 [2023: 5461,277). As at 31 March 2024, had these curmancies
strergthened weakened by 10% against the USD, the total exposure would have been lower by
approximately $64k {2023, 542k} increased by approximately 578k {2023; 551k},

Liquidity risk and financial solvency risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The directors approach to managing this risk is to ensure that the Company has
sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, both under normal and stressed conditions.

Capital management

The Company’s capital pasition i monitared an an ongaing basis to ensure that it is adegquate. There
are ro externally iImpased capital reguirements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
MNote 10 = Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and related parties are disclosed below:

Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
THEIedhIaT MaTr I Expenses (a) March 2024 [b) March 2024 {c)
usp uso usp
Mikko AM Americas, Inc. 1,086,979 84,395
Mikko AM Europe Lta, 4,907 366 409,093
Mikke AM Co., Ltd. 2,302,193 439,668
Mikko AM Asia Ltd, 705,026 56,062 52,370
Nikka AM Hong Kong 26,078 1,948
Highwater Limited 107,407 - -
Total 9,141,049 991,166 52,370
Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
Year ended 31 March 2023 Expenses (a) March 2023 {b) March 2023 {c)
usD usp usp
Mikko Al Americas, Inc, 1,307,234 413,237
Mikke AM Europe Ltd, 5,080,647 416,357
Mikko AM Co., Ltd. 1,994 461 173,046
Mikko AM Asia Ltd, 8239131 66,862
Mikko AM Hong Kong 66,598 2,726
Highwater Limitec 106,123 - -
Total 9,394,304 1,072,268 -

{a} Operating expenses paid to related parties (excluding Hiphwater Limited] are payable under
investment manapement agreements, or eguivalent, and are for fund management services,
Operating expenses paic to Highwater Limitec relate to director, company secretarial and other
services proviced by Highwater Limited to the Company.

{B) The amounts outstanding, in the above table relate to operating expenses, are unsecured and will
be settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been given ar received. No provisions have been made for
doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

{e} The amounts owed are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received.

6] Amounts payable to Nikko Asset Management Europe Ltd relating to group tax relief are not
included in the amounts outstanding in the above table but are includec in the statement of
firancial position, nate &,

The clirectors are the key management personrel of the Company, Remuneration of directors for the
year ended 31 March 2024 was 579,603 (2023; $20,000],

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd is the intermediate parent company of the Company. Nikko Asset
Management Americas, Inc., Nikko Asset Management Europe Ltd,, Nikko Asset Management Asia Ltd
and Mikko Asset Maragement Hong Kong are fellow subsiciaries of the Company. Highwater Limited
is controlled by incividuals who are Directors of Nikke AM Global Cayman Limited,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Mote 11 = Ultimate Holding Company

The Company's immeciate parent is Nikko AM Global Holdings Limited, a company located in the
United Kinpdam. The Comparmy i a subsidiary undertaking of Sumitoma Mitsui Trust Holdings, Ine
which is the ultimate parent company in Japan.

The largest group ir which the results of the Company are consalidated is that heaced by Sumitomo

Mitsui Trust Haldings, Ire., 1-1-2 Marunauchi, Chivada-ku, Tokyo, lapan, The consolidated financial
statements of this group are available to the public kttp://www smith_ip/en/,
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2024 30
2024 30 2024 31
4,967,506 708,217 4,561,628 650,351
1,500,449 213,919 1,834,018 261,476
6,467,955 922,136 6,395,646 911,827
6,467,955 922,136 6,395,646 911,827
1,254,119 178,800 1,655,120 235,970
1,254,119 178,800 1,655,120 235,970
1,000,000 2024
30 2024 31
480,000 480,000 68,434 480,000 68,434
4,733,836 674,903 4,260,526 607,423
5,213,836 743,337 4,740,526 675,857
6,467,955 922,136 6,395,646 911,827
10

142 .57
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2024 30
2024 30 2024 31
6,312,220 899,933 12,998,608 1,853,212
(5.859,317) (835, 363) (12,015,683)  (1,713,076)
452,903 64,570 982,925 140,136
20,407 2,909 (104,049) (14,834)
473,310 67,480 878,876 125,301
(219,719) (31,325)
473,310 67,480 659,157 93,976
473,310 67,480 659,157 93,976

10

142.57
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¢ D ¢y ¢y )y )y
480,000 68,434 10,351,369 1,475,795 10,831,369 1,544,228
(6,750,000)  (962,348)  (6,750,000)  (962,348)
659,157 93,976 659,157 93,976
480,000 68,434 4,260,526 607,423 4,740,526 675,857
473,310 67,480 473,310 67,480
480,000 68,434 4,733,836 674,903 5,213,836 743,337
10
142.57
2024 30
2024 30 2024 31

473,310 67,480 659,157 93,976

(20,640) (2,943) 98,264 14,009

219,719 31,325

233 33 5,785 825

452,903 64,570 982,925 140,136

333,569 47,557 58,583 8,352

(181,282) (25,845) 9,320 1,329

(219,719) (31,325) (27,715) (3,951)

(233) (33) (1,179) (168)

385,238 54,923 1,021,934 145,697

(6,750,000) (962,348)

(6,750,000) (962,348)

385,238 54,923 (5,728,066) (816,650)

4,561,628 650,351 10,387,958 1,481,011

20,640 2,943 (98,264) (14,009)

4,967,506 708,217 4,561,628 650,351

10

142 .57
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2024 30 2024 31
23,470 44,961

2024 30 2024 31
(20,640) 98,264
233 5,785
(20,407) 104,049

2024 30 2024 31
2020 10 19

2024 30 2024 31
1,476,568 1,710,268
52,370
23,881 71,380
1,500,449 1,834,018
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2024 30 2024 31
274,019 214,067

236,576 230,168

743,524 991,166

219,719

1,254,119 1,655,120

http://www._smth.jp/en/
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@
CIBC
CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2025 37,044,375.22 52 8,142
CIBC 1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2024 12 1,060,000,000 1,511 2,420
(©))
UFJ
2025 405
-2
2025 13,195,101,821
*
2025 173 63
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Independent auditor®s report

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of TRP
US Core Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2024, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2024;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2024;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ™s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund ”s ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor ”s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as Trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands i1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
May 16, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2024 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 12 April 2024.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

16 July 2024
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Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the
Trustee of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2023, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2023;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2023;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

182/191



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund ”s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ™s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund ”s ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor ”s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as Trustee of the Fund in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is

shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
May 29, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 9 June 2023. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

05 September 2023
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